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annual report 2011/2012

Heladiv Teas come in a range of fantastic flavours… from the
traditional fine black Ceylon teas to our funky range of luscious
fruit flavors and iced teas.
Heladiv Tea. You can’t help but love it!
Over the years, Heladiv Teas have been breaking the boundaries of
tradition to create a whole new world of tea. We’ve never been confined
to that plain old-fashioned cup of kahata. Instead, we’ve completely
redesigned and redefined tea into something much, much more; offering a
healthier, more attractive lifestyle beverage in a host of dazzling taste
options to a rapidly increasing number of customers both young and old,
across the island and overseas.
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Vision

Our vision is to make HVA FOODS PLC a truly
global company dealing in every kind of tea and
tea based products.

Mission

To drive the flagship brand HELADIV to win
customer confidence and loyalty in tea and
tea based products in all corners of the world,
thereby empowering HVA FOODS PLC to reach
its objectives.
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HELADIV - Symbolising product
excellence and customer

confidence

All teas packed under the HELADIV brand come with a guarantee of product quality. Additionally
the HELADIV “Pure Ceylon Tea” range carries the LION logo further emphasizing that the purest
of Ceylon Teas true to nomenclature are selected for its blends of single origin teas.

HELADIV “Pure Ceylon Tea” range also carries the ozone friendly “earth lung” logo due to Sri Lanka
being recognized as an “ozone friendly” nation having adhered to all protocols in reducing the use
of harmful chemicals depleting the ozone layer. This covers the zero use of banned chemicals in
the tea plantations making Ceylon tea one of the cleanest in the world.

At the HVA production facility, we observe the “good earth policy” on conservation of energy,
minimising wastage, re-cycling of inevitable waste with zero emissions and protection of fauna
and flora. These principles are embodied in the HELADIV brand, popular amongst the tea
connoisseurs around the globe.

HVA Group diligently adheres to corporate ethics elaborated elsewhere in the annual report. The
perfect Industrial harmony the Company has enjoyed over the years is a testimony to the practice
of ethical values. Hence the teas presented under the HELADIV brand are free of guilt.

Tea is a fine beverage assisting in maintaining a balanced life style. New research has emerged
on the therapeutic and curative properties of tea considered to be rich in anti-oxidants. Through
the in-house research and development department, all teas selected for the HELADIV brand are
constantly analyzed for purity and chemical residues in addition to taste. HELADIV teas therefore
are “Health Supportive” and induce healthy living.
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Industry Overview and Prospects

“

The year 2011/12, under review could be termed as one of the
most eventful years for economic activities particularly in the tea
industry. The slow recovery of the world economy pointing to a
virtual stagnation coupled with the Arab spring, destabilizing the
Middle East had its impact on all economic activities.

Trouble in the Middle East starting from Egypt to Libya spilling over
to the Gulf Region and to Syria with the US embargo being waved
at Iran, adversely affected the marketing conditions for tea. Despite
tea being an essential beverage, curtailment of movement due to
civil strife and war and breakdown in banking systems precluded
normal financial transactions and resulted in general depression
of the tea industry. The unrealistic wage increase forced upon the
tea plantations made matters worse with plantation companies
struggling to make ends meet.
It is a generally accepted norm that tea like other essential
commodities finds its way through unusual routes even crossing
enemy defense lines to quench the thirst of people hooked on
tea. But the current situation affecting the Middle East and the
world economic downturn is an unusual phenomenon as ever
experienced. Yet the good news is that all of the teas produced
in Sri Lanka are consumed locally or abroad leaving no immediate
fear to worry about. Nevertheless it is prudent to look at new
business models and challenge the norms if we are to progress
in tea exports and affect the trickle down of resources to the
plantations to suitably compensate their efforts.
From the beginning of the tea plantation industry in Sri Lanka way
back in the 1860s the produce was sold through auction either in
London or in Colombo. The agents of the tea plantations preferred
the product to be packaged and made consumer ready either in
London or a western destination. The early pioneer Thomas J.
Lipton who took over some of the failing coffee plantations and

It is a generally accepted
norm that tea like other
essential commodities finds
its way through unusual routes
even crossing enemy defense
lines to quench the thirst of
people hooked on tea

”

non-productive lands in Ceylon realized the potential tea had and
gradually converted his cheese and bacon business, started as a
small grocery store in Scotland, to a worldwide tea business under
his family name LIPTON.
Today the firm Thomas J. Lipton, built on Ceylon tea, has made
inroads into every nook and corner in the tea world through
investments and acquisitions and controls the world tea economy.
The foresight of Thomas J. Lipton to supply his ever increasing
consumers, only the finest quality products under the family name
Lipton and build customer confidence in his brand name surpassing
the value of generic products is a case study for all entrepreneurs.
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“
The tea industry in Sri Lanka unfortunately has got stuck in a time
capsule and vested interests have prevailed upon decision makers
to adopt a protectionist policy to stop any Sri Lankan brand builder
from becoming a multinational operating out of Sri Lanka. This will
perhaps make Sri Lanka ship more bulk tea in the years to come
and branding activities under pure Ceylon tea will be limited only
to the best quality Ceylon Tea totaling not more than 100 million
kilograms or 30% of the national production. The main value
addition activities will eventually shift to other liberalized economic
zones such as Dubai.
It will not be too long before some of the other tea producing
countries such as Indonesia, India, Vietnam and Kenya, facilitate
blending and value addition activities in their respective countries,
encouraging Sri Lankan brand owners to set up off-shore
operations.

Global Economic Impact
The tumultuous economic downturn in the world economy, which
began in the latter half of 2008 continues, with no visibile signs of
stability. Many efforts by the US and western countries to create
employment and boost buying power in the market place have
failed to bring in the desired results. On the brighter side of this
debacle all manufacturing entities have looked at innovative
methods of cost reduction to improve competitiveness and thereby
make their products affordable to the masses.
Tea being a basic commodity that appeals to all human beings
rich or poor has not suffered much unlike some of the other
commodities. Nevertheless the consumers all over the world
are looking at cheap options when determining their daily
requirements. Demanding price increases therefore is not an option
but price reduction through efficient manufacturing and innovative
marketing techniques appear to be the only options available to
sustain the industry. The indications are that the effects of the

We also established the first
ever luxury tea lounge under
the style of “Heladiv Tea Club”
or “HTC” at the refurbished
Old Dutch Hospital precinct
in the heart of the Colombo
business center

”

recession that has lasted for four years will bottom-out this year at
least to create a stable platform for gradual improvement in future
years. The lessons learnt during the great recession regarding
consumer behavior, financial vulnerability and civil disturbances
affecting logistics, should strengthen progressive companies in
strategising future business models. The years leading to 2020
will showcase a new world economic order brought out by the
entrepreneurship of focused entities. Refusal to accept the changes
brought out by modern day consumer demands will push the
traditionalists to demand a protectionist cocoon for survival.
One lesson we can learn from is the eventful episode of the rise
and fall of Eastman Kodak, which realised only much later to its
detriment that the world had moved towards digital photography.

Performance of the Company in 2011/12
Amidst the difficult marketing conditions the company has
expanded its market share in the value added sector representing
“HELADIV” and other consumer ready brands on the shop shelves’
around the globe. The Eastern hemisphere was affected much
less during the recession and our focus to expand business in this
region is now bringing in positive results.
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During the year under review the number of franchise tea cafes
in China, first established in 2009 under company owned brand
infini-t, grew to 25. We also established the first ever luxury tea
lounge under the style of “Heladiv Tea Club” or “HTC” at the
refurbished Old Dutch Hospital Shopping precinct in the heart of
the Colombo business center.
Our efforts towards improving the production facilities by
deploying machinery have now begun to pay dividends. The
strength of the brand depends much on the quality assurance
given to the consumer and in this regard the gradual mechanization
process has helped us to reduce manufacturing defects and
thereby greatly reducing customer complaints.
Turnover of the company recorded a healthy increase of 32%
compared to the previous financial year. This increase, coming in
the form of business expansion in new markets, poses the potential
to generate a healthy bottom line in the medium to long term and
strengthen brand equity of HELADIV. However venturing into new
markets involves a substantial entry cost in the initial years, overriding
the gross profits.
The continuous depreciation of the Sri Lanka Rupee against foreign
currencies had a negative impact on the bottom line having to
provide a substantial book value for loss in exchange. The financial

year started with a strong rupee of 110 to a USD, sliding to 127 to
a USD by the 31st of March 2012.
When viewing the overall performance of the company the
following salient points emerged.
1) Gradual increase in the demand for “HELADIV” in established
markets in Russia and Far East.
2) New entry points for HELADIV in the Far East and rest of the
world.
3) Deployment of tea bagging machines, packaging machines and
production line equipment enhancing quality aspects as well as
controlling the cost of production.
4) A strong foundation being laid to meet the increasing demands
for “HELADIV” teas around the globe.
The tea extraction plant also made certain progress by exporting
bulk tea extracts to several Asian and Far Eastern markets for trials
as well as introducing several new products in the form of “Ready
to Dilute and Drink” (RTDD) tea mixes. These products are still
considered novel and require further marketing efforts to grow into
regular businesses. It is hoped that before too long the tea extraction
plant will return impressive results to be recognized as a novel
business model and boost bottom line profitability of the company.
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Reshaping the Company to meet challenges
Tea being a traditional beverage and controlled by companies with
rigidly traditional marketing policies faced the inevitable challenges
of the market place, as experienced by all commodities. At HVA
Foods PLC the marketing team views the archaic business models
as a difficult path for progression. In a market where competition
for share of throat is becoming fierce day by day, tea as a generic
product must find its unique features to stake its share without
losing to other widely marketed beverages.
Having understood the consumer behavioral patterns and the
buying power of the consumers in a world affected by recession
and civil strife, delivering a product good in quality, appealing to
the consumer to satisfy all sensory faculties and not forgetting a
competitive price band is a challenge we now have to face.
Thanks to the in-house Research and Development in the fields of
Manufacturing, Production and Quality Control we have several
possibilities to meet the above stated challenges. Our Packaging
goes through intense reviewing to conceptualize modern yet
simple and cost effective consumer packs. The quality assurance
department together with procurement department diligently
follows strict parameters to ensure finest teas and packaging
materials are purchased at the correct prices and processed into
consumer ready packages.

Our marketing efforts in attracting consumers are totally different
to traditional methods practiced by a vast majority of companies.
We have strategized the designing of consumer packs to virtually
talk to the consumer and thereby create a bond between the
purchaser and the product. Our latest range of teas under the
“Paradise range” is one such attempt in “captivative-marketing”.
As we believe in continuos improvement and unending search for
excellence we hope to keep our customers excited throughout
their association with our products. At HVA Foods the managers
are ready to face the new challenges the world economy has
created and will be creating in the future. Hence the future looks
bright for us at HVA Foods PLC.

Potential for Growth
Tea as a simple beverage is known in the entire world. Very little
marketing is needed to educate the mass market on what tea
is. However the true potential in tea lies elsewhere. For years,
the health supportive elements in tea which played a silent but
vital role were not discussed openly. Today’s modern research has
brought to the surface the multi faceted strengths in the herb tea
for various applications in the human life.
At HVA, true to our company philosophy, we chase after the
hitherto unexploited unique features in tea and we believe that
the true potential for growth lies there. As deliberated through our
company communications we focus on segregating the true power
of tea from the notion of a traditional beverage.
As in any research program the process of developing consumer
ready products takes time and has to pass several tests. HVA
research and development laboratory is quite enthusiastic on
turning over some of the tests done at laboratory level to be
converted to pilot projects. The usual transformation of a pilot
project to a commercial venture is expensive in terms of time
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and money. This we are confident will be in our favour as the
competition in these sectors compared to the beverage sector is
minute.
The Sri Lankan tea industry itself has set a challenging target of
Rs. 5 billion dollars to be achieved by 2020 in exporting tea
worldwide. This magical target was first proposed by the TEA
through the EDB deliberation in 2010, and later underlined by
the Secretary to the Treasury. It is not an impossible task of the
decision makers at the highest level to look at the world economy
not through a narrow an myopic vision but from a positive ‘Sky is
the limit’ mentality. The “International Tea Committee” which is the
main organization for gathering worldwide data on tea, in its latest
bulletin presents the world tea export statistics from 2001 – 2010.
According to this the total tea exports from countries worldwide
have increased from 1.4 billion kgs in 2001 to 1.7 billion kgs in
2010. As a percentage of the world tea production this represent
45.7% and 41.5% respectively. The world tea production for the
same period has increased year on year from 3.05 billon kilograms
to 4.16 billion kilograms. The interesting analysis of this data is
the increase in tea crop, increase in retention in the countries of
production for consumption and yet the increase in exports on a
year-on-year basis.
Any entrepreneur who would like to expand his business in the tea
industry will not turn a blind eye to these stark figures indicating
potential to grow bypassing the objectives set by the bureaucrats
of the local tea industry indirectly compelling the exporters to
focus on the local tea crop of 300 million kilograms or less than
10% of the world tea crop. Finding a mechanism to expand whilst
protecting the good image of pure Ceylon tea is a matter, which
should be handled by stakeholders of the industry, without making
irrational assessments on a nationalistic tenor. If Sri Lanka can be
the tea nation to the world the multi faceted benefits that would
accrue to the country in terms of finance, shipping, packaging and
technology are substantial.

Protection for pure Ceylon tea as a single origin finest quality
product is unquestionable and the industry initiative in raising a
multi billion rupee fund to launch the marketing campaign under
the Lion logo will further protect “Pure Ceylon Tea” exported from
Sri Lanka. On the other hand the establishment of a securitized
economic hub to deal in value addition of multi origin blends will
open new vistas without compromising the USPs of pure Ceylon
tea. Hence the demand to ban the proposed export hub will
trigger an exodus of Sri Lankan entrepreneurs to set up operations
in other countries, emulating the success of Sir Thomas. J. Lipton in
expanding the scope of his tea business.

Continuous Innovation – The Way Forward
Today in every industry, in every large organization, innovation
has become imperative. The challenges faced by the present day
entrepreneurs do not have textbook answers. From the selection of
raw materials to controlling quality in a production line; deploying
the most efficient production systems through manual or electrical
means; handling the logistics of the product to reach the customer
with least amount of stagnation attracting an endeared customer
to the product on the shelf, all require innovative thinking.
At HVA, the Research and Development laboratory takes the lead
in driving innovation at every level. The management team at
their monthly meetings continuously discusses innovative ideas
that would enhance the product value and enable staying ahead
of competition. The process is driven by the Chairman as a front
runner, so that research and development becomes a key driving
force of the company. Co-opting independent scientists for
specific research work has strengthened the present team of R&D
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researchers. It is also a fact that an allocation of costs for research
is specified in our company overheads as a percentage (%) in the
overall expenditure. It is the future hope of the company to have
the R&D department of HVA generating income through patents
and copyrights.

Look to the Future
Looking to the future of HVA we see unlimited potential for
growth in the beverage and non beverage sectors. We also see
potential for adding value to teas of other origins apart from our
premium brand of pure Ceylon tea. With the setting up of our
concept tea shop “HTC” in December 2011, we see the expansion
of a franchise café network in selected cities of the world. With
the open-door policy adopted by many tea-producing countries,
we look forward to being present and expanding our network
to improve the supply chain. This aspect of establishing a strong
supply chain will become absolutely necessary in terms of the
current developments in consumer habits based on brand loyalty as
opposed to generic products based only on geographic regions.

I wish to place on record that
together with the Management
Team we will do our utmost to
expand the shareholder value
by deploying the company
philosophy of progression
through innovation

”

celebratory messages, but by making an indelible mark in the Sri
Lankan economy through innovation, to reach world recognition.
Towards what we hope to achieve, team spirit and commitment of
the staff are essential ingredients.
My sincere gratitude goes to the staff for their belief in the
company and its goals, and to the Board of Directors, particularly
the Independent Directors who have extended their contribution in
no small measure with praise as well as criticisms where applicable
to charter the successful course we have traversed.

It is no secret that most consumables are driven by brand promise
overriding strength of contents within. We also see a promising
future with many consumers looking at health aspects when it
comes to food, drinks and personal applications. Tea we believe is
the ideal product to fulfill these aspirations due to it being natural
and health supportive. It is the hope of the management at HVA
that the tea business will diversify into a multi faceted product,
fulfilling many aspirations of human beings towards achieving a
healthy and natural life style.

Finally on behalf of the company my sincere appreciation goes to
all the shareholders for their trust in the company even during the
volatile periods we experienced during the last year. I wish to place
on record that together with the Management Team we will do our
utmost to expand the shareholder value by deploying the company
philosophy of progression through innovation.

Thank You

Rohan Fernando
Chairman, HVA Foods PLC

The HVA group with its first company being established in 1990
has traversed a long distance. In 2014 the group will be looking
forward to celebrating its 25th anniversary not merely with

10th August 2012
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Chronology of Our

Achievements

1. Certificate of Compliance – In our first year of operation as a public
quoted company, HVA Foods PLC was selected by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka for a certificate of compliance
for the food and beverage sector companies at the Annual Report
Awards - 2011. This we consider as an achievement for meeting all
statutory compliances.
2. Lanka Star Award for Packaging - At the annual “Lanka Star” award
ceremony held in March 2011, the company won a bronze award for
its “HELADIV Green Tea Flavoured Tea Bags”.
3. Expansion of Infini-T shop network - During 2011 the chain of shops
under Infini-T expanded to 25 through main cities in China.
4. Presidential Award - In July 2012, HVA Foods PLC was recognized
for its contribution in value addition in the medium category of
tea exporters on its performance in 2011. The assessment and
competition conducted by the Plantation Ministry of Sri Lanka
recognized HVA Foods PLC as an award winner at the “National
Plantation Awards 2012” and awarded by HE The President.
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Heladiv Tea Club - HTC

In 2009 the company got firsthand experience in franchise café
business with three specialized cafes being established in Xiamen and
Beijing, China in July that year. This experience fulfilled a cherished
dream of the company to develop its world-wide café concept.
In mid 2011 when the Old Dutch Hospital building was restored as a
shopping precinct, HVA Foods PLC was able to submit a bid proposal
to establish a specialized tea café. Shop No. 08 in the first court yard
allocated to HVA Foods PLC was a space of approximately 800 sq.ft.,
without much imagination but with serious conditions imposed by
the Department of Archeology to conserve the old building without
causing any damage during interior decoration.
The task entrusted to the team of young designers to bring
out the magic of old world charm harmonized with modern day
comfort and exquisite ambiance to provide a hitherto unexplored
tea experience, was a tough order but well executed. The final
product launched as HELADIV TEA CLUB (HTC), galvanized many
customers to the café with most encouraging comments on the
décor, ambiance, service and the products.
On 2nd December 2011, our unique tea café HTC was opened in
the refurbished Dutch Hospital Shopping Precinct. At a subsequent
ceremony held on 20th December 2011, the Minister of Plantation
Industries Honorable Mahinda Samarasinghe commissioned the
HTC amidst a large gathering of officials and stakeholders of the tea
industry.

The project which was started as a concept shop, has now given
the company sufficient experience, financial insights and important
management data to develop the world-wide café franchise. HTC
today is well patronized throughout the day and more so during the
weekends and it is also a subject matter discussed in the social media.
Colombo Fashion Week 2011, was inspired to use HTC concepts
and invited HELADIV to be the beverage partner of the annual
fashion fiesta. It is hoped that before long the company will be in a
position to propagate the HTC within and outside Colombo as well
as in overseas cities.
With this venture HVA FOODS PLC has created a new profit center
and potential for expansion with a branch network. At HTC we give
the customer a new meaning to tea drinking and entice even the
non-tea drinkers to try our products.
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Board of Directors

Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke

Mr. Rohan Fernando

Mr. N. C. Vitarana

Non-Executive (Independent) Director

Chairman

Non- Executive (Independent) Director

Mr. Harsha Fernando

Mrs. V. S. Amunugama Fernando

Mr. J. Raddalgoda

Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Executive Director
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Board of

Directors

Mr. A. R. H. Fernando
Chairman

The Chairman Mr. Fernando has over 35 years of experience in
the tea industry and has been successful in developing, promoting
and marketing the traditional beverage of tea in many innovative
variants over the last several years. Prior to founding his own
Company, he began his career as a trainee Tea Taster at Carson,
Cumberbatch & Co., Ltd. He was promoted to a Tea Executive in
1979. He joined Brooke Bond Ceylon Limited as a tea buyer where
he was promoted to Tea Manager in 1985. In 1982 he spent one
year with Brooke Bond Commodities Ltd. United Kingdom learning
international tea blending and trading. He served on the Colombo
Tea Traders Association as a member and also as a Director on the
Sri Lanka Tea Board. He functioned as the President of the National
Chamber of Exporters in 2008 and 2009. He is a past vice-chairman
of the tea exporters association.

Mr. J. Raddalgoda
Executive Director

Mr. Raddalgoda accounts for nearly eight years of experience in
plantation management in the private sector, the final four years
of same holding managerial level posts. His knowledge of the
plantation sector includes tea, rubber, coconut and cardamom
plantations. He has been with the Company since February 1998
and handled tasks under managerial positions in the areas of
Production and Commercial operations, Human Resource and
Administration. Before joining the Company Mr. Raddalgoda
served as a Plantation Executive at Kelani Valley Plantations
Limited.

Mr. W. I. H. J. Fernando
Executive Director

Mr. Fernando has over 10 years of experience in the tea industry.
He joined HVA Lanka Exports (Private) Limited as a Management
Trainee and currently acts as the Director Operations in HVA Group
being responsible for manufacturing and procurement and is also
involved in the international brand marketing of the Company.

Mrs. V. S. Amunugama Fernando
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Fernando is a graduate of the Faculty of Law, University of
Colombo and an Attorney-at-Law by profession. She counts for
over 19 years of experience in the field of communication and is
the co-founder and Joint Managing Director of TRIAD group of
companies. She also serves on the board of Citrus Leisure PLC.

Mr. N. C. Vitarana

Non-Executive (Independent) Director
Mr. Vitarana is a graduate of the University of Ceylon and a
Chartered Accountant. He brings with him a wealth of knowledge
and experience acquired over a career spanning over 57 years in
areas such as taxation, auditing, banking and financial services,
mergers and acquisitions and corporate restructuring both in Sri
Lanka and abroad. Mr. Vitarana is a qualified Chartered Accountant
and has also served as a director of John Keells Holdings PLC.

Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke

Non-Executive (Independent) Director
Mr. Ratnayeke is a leading commercial lawyer and the senior
partner and founder of Paul Ratnayeke Associates. He graduated
with honors from the University of Ceylon (Colombo) and has
been awarded a LLM Degree by the University of London. He is an
Attorney-at-Law of the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka and a Solicitor
of the Supreme Court of England & Wales.
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Senior Management

Jeewaka Raddalgoda, Damith Hewathudella,
Lucian Fernando, Sampath Gamage,
Lakshman Samarasinghe, Vidura Gunaratne,
Harsha Fernando
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HVA group ethics &

Principles of engagement

Labour Ethics
HVA Group ensures compliance with all legal parameters placed
by the government, in harmony with the International Labour
Organization (ILO). HVA Group labour recruitment policy is
not biased towards gender, race or religion. Furthermore the
recruitment policy has conscious provisions to engage differentlyabled persons. Child labour is not tolerated and a minimum age of
18 is imposed for securing employment.

Staff Welfare Ethics
At HVA, staff welfare is paramount as we believe the employees
are the most important asset of the company. Amongst the welfare
ethics, the following principles and programs are in operation.

Wages
Staff wages are above the minimum level recommended by statute.
All staff is entitled to a profit bonus disbursed on a carefully
designed format which has been in operation for the past 4 years,
without any complaints from the staff. Every year the staff are
appraised face to face on a simple but highly effective format for
concurrence on performance and skills.

Medical Benefits
The Staff have medical insurance cover for indoor and outdoor
treatment. Additionally, a qualified doctor visits the company once
in two weeks for any medical attention required by the staff.

Staff Meals
Improving on our previous practice of providing a subsided
mid-day meal to the staff, the company has now extended this
facility to cover all three meals to staff during their working hours.

Extended Family Benefits
At the beginning of every year, all children of staff members
are provided with school text books and accessories including
medically recommended school bags, Tiffin boxes and even shoes
to help and encourage the schooling of the children.

Staff Dignity
The dignity of all staff is secured through a staff access mechanism
for discussion of grievances at various levels, facilitated by the HR
department.

Working Environment
All buildings are positioned in such a way as to generate natural
light and control of climate with a dust free and heat diffused
working environment. The large extent of land in the compound is
planted with trees in the manner of a forest garden.
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Recycling of Waste
All man made waste is recycled at the point of waste generation.
Bio-degradable waste is recycled in a large purpose built compost
tank. Paper, aluminum, plastics and ferrous waste are separated at
the point of waste and sold to recyclers. Human waste generated
in the toilets is subject to aerobic and anaerobic activity to break
down to water and sludge for easy and safe disposal. The Group
operates a large organic farm growing fruits and vegetables as its
commitment to reduce its carbon footprint. The farm, initiated in
1996, is earmarked for expansion into a mega project to produce
organic fruits and vegetables for the national and international
markets. Most of the waste converted to compost within the Group
is utilized in the organic farm.

Energy Ethic
The energy policy of the company helps reduce the energy costs in
production whilst reducing the draw on the national power supply
dependent mainly on fossil fuels such as oil and coal. In this regard,
all company buildings are positioned on the east-west solar path to
facilitate maximum illumination during the day from 6am to 6pm,
requiring little or no lighting of bulbs. As a result the percentage
of energy cost in relation to the turnover of the Group is less than
0.6%.

Raw Material Sourcing Principles
As an HACCP compliant Company, all raw materials are sourced
through a preferred supplier list. All teas are purchased only
through legal means specified and supervised by the Ceylon Tea
Traders Association (CTTA) and the Sri Lanka Tea Board (SLTB).
As a result the prices paid for tea reflect the true value, thereby
activating a trickle down effect to the tea farmer and estate staff.

Statutory Ethics
The HVA Group with one of its main subsidiaries, HVA Foods PLC,
operating as a public quoted company, is transparent for public
scrutiny. It is the policy of the HVA Group to fully comply with all
government taxes and levies, worker benefit contributions to EPF
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and ETF funds as well as accurate declaration of transactions to the
internal and external auditors.
Sharp eye on dengue eradication
The eradication of dengue has now become a national priority.
In this regard, the company, led by the Board of Directors, has
implemented an effective program to control and eradicate
the dengue epidemic. Daily, weekly and monthly programs are

Tea Bagging

implemented to check for dengue breeding places as well as apply
prescribed treatment for eradication of mosquito larvae.

Warehousing facility

By virtue of applying the above ethics and principles, diligently in
our day to day operations the company is proud to declare that all
products are ethically produced and free of guilt.
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Our

Products
“ The newly developed selection of teas under the Paradise range is inspired by
the beauty of the land they call Serendib, Tabrobane, Heladiv from ancient times.
The sunshine, the misty mountains, serene lakes and the sandy beaches have
mesmerized the travelers to this beautiful and hospitable island of ours”.

Black Tea

Earl Grey

PEKOE

Green Tea

Lemon Tea
Ice Lemon

English Breakfast

The great Russian author Anton Chekov wrote
after his visit to then Ceylon in December 1890,
“ If there is paradise on earth, it is Ceylon”

24

HVA FOODS PLC

25

ANNUAL REPORT 2011-12

26

HVA FOODS PLC

Corporate

Governance

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Company’s
Corporate Governance and the need to ensure the highest
standards of accountability to all stakeholders.HVA Foods PLC
is fully committed to the principles of good governance and
recognizes that good Corporate Governance is the corner-stone
of a successful organization. The Company is committed to acting
with integrity, transparency and fairness in all of its dealings, and
considerable emphasis is placed by the Board on the development
of systems, processes and procedures to ensure the maintenance
of high standards throughout the organization.
The Board comprises of three non-executive directors and three
executive directors including Chairman, all of whom possess a
broad range of skills and experience across a range of industries
and functional areas. Detailed profiles of each member of the
Board are provided in a separate section of this Annual Report.
The Board meets frequently in order to ensure the effective
discharge of its duties. The Board reviews strategic and operational
issues, approves interim and annual financial statements and annual
budgets, assesses performance and ensures compliance with all
statutory and regulatory obligations. Members of the Board are
expected to attend the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
and board meetings.
Advice and guidance is provided to the senior management
team at monthly performance review meetings which provide an
opportunity to evaluate progress and ensure accountability of the
senior management team. A strong focus on training and career
development has created committed and empowered workforce
who continue to generate value and drive the Company towards
high standards of achievement. The Directors are responsible for

the formulation of the Company’s business strategy and in ensuring
the existence of an adequate risk management framework. The
non-executive directors bring independent judgment to bear on
issues of strategy and performance. The Board is satisfied with the
effectiveness of the system of internal control in the Company for
the period up to the date of signing the Financial Statements. The
Board holds responsibility for ensuring that the senior management
team possesses the relevant skills and expertise required in the
management of the Company and that a suitable succession
planning strategy is in place. Directors also ensure adherence
to laws and regulations pertaining to the functioning of the
organization. Composition of the Board of Directors of HVA Foods
PLC complies with the requirements of the CSE Listing Rules. The
Company has three non-executive directors on its board therefore
does meet the requirement of Rule 7.10.1 (a). It is also compliance
with Rule 7.10.2 (b) which requires two or one-third of the nonexecutive directors (whichever is higher) to be independent. The
independent non-executive directors on the Board, Mr. N. C.
Vitarana and Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke have submitted a declaration of
their independence.
The proper constitution of Remuneration and Audit committees
that meet the requirements of the CSE listing rules. The
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee comply with
the criteria of listing rule 7.10.5(a) /6(a) which requires the
committee to comprise of two or majority of the non- executive
directors (whichever is higher) to be independent with respect to
Remuneration committee and audit committee.
P.R. Secretarial Services (Pvt) Limited serves as the Company
Secretaries for HVA Foods PLC. The company secretary ensures
compliance with Board procedures, The Companies Act, and
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Securities and Exchange Commission and Colombo Stock
Exchange regulations. The Company Secretary keeps the Board
informed of relevant new regulations and requirements.
The Board has overall responsibility over the systems of internal
control and has put in place sufficient internal control to protect its
assets, and to ensure the compliance with statutory requirements.
The company is ISO 22000:2005 certified. All systems are
well documented with clearly defined processes, duties and
responsibilities.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is made up of two independent nonexecutive directors, N. C.Vitarana (chairman) (Chartered
Accountant) and J. H. P. Ratnayeke (Corporate Lawyer).
The internal audit function is out-sourced to Ernst & Young,
Chartered Accountants. An internal Audit is carried out each
quarter and its scope is designed to cover all significant areas
of operations in a twelve month cycle. The internal audit reports
are discussed with Management and corrective action is taken as
appropriate.

7.10.1 Non Executive directors
The Board consist of six directors of whom three, namely Ms. V. S.
Amunugama Fernando and Messrs J. H. P. Ratnayeke and N. C.
Vitarana are non-executive directors.

7.10.2 Independent Directors
Messrs J. H. P. Ratnayeke and N. C. Vitarana are “Independent
Directors” as declared by the directors concerned in terms of rule
7.10.2.b and as determined by the board in terms of rule 7.10.3.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of 2 Non-Executive
Independent Directors, namely Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke and Mr. Nihal
Vitarana. The Committee which is chaired by J. H. P. Ratnayeke
has met once during the financial year under consideration and
has recommended to the board of directors revisions to the
remuneration of the board of directors, the committees appointed
by the board, and advised on the policy with respect to staff
increments.

Management is required to furnish a quarterly compliance
certificate which provides confirmation of compliance with
Company policies covering all operations of the company including
the preparation of financial statements, the control and
safe-guarding of all company assets (including adequate insurance
cover) and maintenance of adequate liquidity
The Audit Committee met with the external auditors, KPMG, and
discussed the significant audit observations and recommendations
concerning the operations during this accounting period
The Audit Committee met on four occasions to consider matters
arising out of the operations of the Company during the current
accounting period
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Report of the Board of Directors
The Directors of HVA Foods PLC, have pleasure in submitting their Report
together with the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 31st March 2012 and the Auditors’ Report thereon.
Company Performance
The Company recorded an increase in turnover of 32% during the year
2011/2012 in comparison to the previous year, with a corresponding
increase in gross profit. However, the profit after tax was Rs. 9.2 million
in 2011/2012 in comparison to Rs. 46.3 million the previous year mainly
because of an exchange loss of Rs. 14.3 million in comparison to an
exchange profit of Rs. 18.8 million in the previous year and an increase in
distribution expenses and administration expenses. The former recorded
increased expenditure on business promotion and travel costs which
resulted in increased export income. Administration expenses increased
because of obligations arising from conversion to a public quoted
company, revision of staff salaries, tea cafe expenses (income from which is
shown separately) and increase in charges for depreciation

Principal Activities
During the year under review the principal activities of the Company were
processing, packing and export of value added teas. The Company was
also engaged in the development, manufacture and distribution of tea
extract based products, contract packing of teas and franchise operations
of tea cafes.
The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary is the owner of the worldwide
franchise for the ‘Heladiv’ trade mark.
The Company is a subsidiary of the holding Company HVA Lanka Exports
(Pvt.) Limited, which is principally involved in exporting of bulk tea.
Financial Statements
The complete Financial Statements of the Company duly signed by two
Directors of the Company are given on pages 34 to 67.
Auditors Report
The Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements is given on page 33.

Financial Results
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees
Consolidated
For the year ended 31 March
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income
Distribution expenses
Administration expenses
Results from operating activities
Finance income
Finance costs
Net finance costs
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year
Basic earnings per share

Company

2012

2011

2012

741,654,063
(637,014,265)
104,639,798
47,281,751
(27,716,992)
(91,995,672)
32,208,885
21,630,049
(41,056,186)
(19,426,137)
12,782,748
(3,519,654)
9,263,094
0.14

561,647,269
(480,951,071)
80,696,198
49,644,333
(15,721,869)
(59,110,373)
55,508,288
23,297,515
(31,645,037)
(8,347,522)
47,160,766
(821,528)
46,339,238
0.95

741,654,063
(637,014,265)
104,639,798
47,281,751
(27,716,992)
(91,986,672)
32,217,885
21,630,049
(41,056,043)
(19,425,994)
12,791,891
(3,519,654)
9,272,237
0.14

Figures in brackets indicate deductions
Accounting Policies
The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of Financial
Statements are given on pages 39 to 44. There were no material changes
in the Accounting Policies adopted.

Stated Capital
The stated capital of the Company as at 31st March 2012 is
Rs. 333,857,588/= (66,428,660 ordinary shares)

2011
561,647,269
(480,951,071)
80,696,198
49,644,332
(15,721,869)
(59,095,373)
55,523,288
23,297,515
(31,644,287)
(8,346,772)
47,176,516
(821,653)
46,354,864
0.95
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Interests Register
For the year ended 31st December		
The Company maintains an Interest Register as required by the
Note
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The information pertaining to Directors
interest in contracts and their share ownership are disclosed in the
Interest Register.
a. Directors’ Remuneration and Other Benefits
Directors remuneration in respect of the company for the financial
year ended 31st March 2012 is Rs 20,961,016/- (2010/11 Rs.10,208,106/-).
b. Related Party Transactions
Directors have disclosed Related Party Transactions in terms of
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards – 30 (revised 2005) and such
transactions are given in Note 32.2.2 and 32.3 on page 64 to 67 of
the Annual Report.
Material Issues pertaining to Employees
There are no material issues pertaining to employees.
Dividends
The Directors do not recommend a dividend for the year under review.
Property, Plant and Equipment
An analysis of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company is
disclosed in Note 11 to the Financial Statements on pages 48 - 54.
Valuation and Location of Building, Machinery (Heavy duty) and Stores
Equipment (Heavy Duty)
The valuation of the Land and Building, Machinery (heavy duty) and Stores
Equipment (Heavy Duty) are given in Note 11.12 on page 53. The revalued
Land & Buildings are located at 39A, Linton Road, Kandana.
Material Foreseeable Risk Factor
Foreseeable trading risk has been addressed and covered adequately.
Investments
Details of investments held by the Company are disclosed in Note 12 &
19 to the Financial Statements on page 54 & 57.
Directors
The Directors of the Company as at 31st March 2012 were as follows:
Mr. A. R. H. Fernando			
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando					
Mr. J. Raddalgoda			
			
Mr. W. I. H. J. Fernando
Mr. N. C. Vitarana
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke

Appointments of new Directors
2012
2011
2012
None
Rs. ‘000
Rs. ‘000
Rs. ‘000
Directors Interest in Shares of the Company
(a) Direct Interest
Names of Director
Mr. A. R. H. Fernando
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Mr. J. Raddalgoda
Mr. W. I. H. J. Fernando
Mr. N. C. Vitarana
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke

2011
Rs. ‘000

As at 31/03/2012
31
NIL
5,198
NIL
NIL
NIL

As at 31/03/2011
31
NIL
105,198
NIL
NIL
NIL

(b) Indirect Interest
61.10% of the shares of HVA Foods PLC are held by HVA Lanka Export
(Pvt) Ltd. The Shares of HVA Lanka Export (Pvt) Ltd owned by Mr. A. R.
H. Fernando (Chairman) and Mrs. V. S. Amunugama Fernando (Non –
Executive Director) with 7,602,029 shares and 01 share respectively.
Retirement by Rotation
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke retires in accordance with Article 88 (i) of the Articles
of Association of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for
re-election at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
A resolution in terms of section 211 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007
will be moved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the reelection of Mr. N C Vitarana, who is presently 81 (eighty one) years of age.
Donations
The Company had made a donation of Rs. 9,100/= (2010/2011 – Rs. 3,350)
during the period under review.
Shareholders
The distribution and analysis of shareholdings as at 31st March 2012:
From

No of Holders

No of Shares

%

2,769
1,665
384
27
3
4,848

1,344,363
6,143,716
10,587,567
6,138,787
42,214,227
66,428,660

2.02
9.25
15.93
9.25
63.55
100.00

Categories of Shareholders
Local Individuals
Local Institutions

4,612
201

18,042,810
47,665,481

27.16
71.75

Foreign Individuals
Total

35
4,848

720,369
66,428,660

1.09
100.00

1
1,001
10,001
100,001
Over 1,000,000
Total

To
1,000
10,000
100,000
1,000,000
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Directors

20 Largest Holders of Equity

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

HVA Lanka Exports (Private) Limited
Seylan Bank PLC/HVA Lanka Exports (Private)
Limited
Seylan Bank PLC/M/S Divasa Equity (Pvt) Ltd
Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC/Lankem
Ceylon PLC
Seylan Bank PLC/W D N H Perera
Mr T G Thoradeniya
Esna Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Mr H W M Woodward
Mr M Mahibalan
Mr M Muralidaran
Administrators and Secretaries (Private) Limited
Mr S H Amarasekera
Mrs K V W S Maddumage
Mr T L M Imtiaz
Mrs S G De Silva
Gnanam Imports (Pvt) Ltd
Mrs F S Sabry
Carlines Holdings (Private) Limited
Mr A H M Riyaz
Mr S N C W M B C Kandegedara
Others
Total

as at 31/03/2012
No of Shares
28,988,471
11,600,000

(%)
43.639
17.462

1,625,756
959,500

2.447
1.444

551,600
0.830
435,100
0.655
303,300
0.457
302,100
0.455
300,000
0.452
236,400
0.356
210,000
0.316
208,700
0.314
200,000
0.301
199,900
0.301
196,500
0.296
194,075
0.292
190,000
0.286
170,010
0.256
165,000
0.248
155,302
0.234
47,191,714 71.041
19,236,946 28.959
66,428,660 100.000

Contingent Liabilities
Details of Contingent Liabilities as at 31st March 2012 are set out in Note
34 on page 67 to the Financial Statements.
Post Balance Sheet Events
In the opinion of the Directors, no item, transaction or event of an unusual
nature has taken place between the financial year end and the date of
the report that would materially affect the results of the Company for the
financial year in respect of which this report is made.
Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing any significant risk faced by the Company.
Going Concern
The Financial Statements are prepared on the assumption that the
Company is a going concern for the next financial year.
Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors confirms that the Company is compliant with
Section 7.10 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
An Audit Committee and a Remuneration Committee function as Board
Sub Committees with Directors who possess the requisite qualifications
and experience. The composition of the said committees is as follows:
Audit Committee
Mr. N. C. Vitarana
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke

Chairman (Independent Non Executive Director)
(Independent Non Executive Director)

Public Holding Percentage
The percentage of public shareholding as at 31st March 2012 is 38.89 %
(25,834,960 shares)

Remuneration Committee
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke Chairman (Independent Non Executive Director)
Mr. N. C. Vitarana
(Independent Non Executive Director)

Auditors
The accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 have been audited
by Messrs. KPMG, Chartered Accountants, who offer themselves for
re-appointment. In accordance with the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 a
resolution relating to their re-appointment and authorizing the Directors to
determine their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Mr. J H P Ratnayeke is a Corporate Lawyer and Mr. N C Vitarana is a
Chartered Accountant

A. R. H. Fernando
Chairman

J. Raddalgoda
Executive Director

The Auditors Messrs. KPMG, Chartered Accountants were paid Rs.
540,000/- (2010/2011 – Rs. 450,000/-) as audit fees by the Company.
As far as the Directors are aware the Auditors do not have any relationship
(other than that of an Auditor) with the Company. The Auditors also do not
have any interest in the Company.

Secretaries
P. R. SECRETARIAL SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Colombo

Capital Commitments
There were no material Capital Expenditure Commitments other than
those disclosed in Note 34 on page 67 to the Financial Statements.

10th August 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HVA FOODS PLC
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HVA Foods
PLC (the “Company”), the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary (“the Group”) as at 31st March 2012 which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2012, the income statement,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes as set out on pages 39 to 67 of this Annual Report.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka
Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
We therefore believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
Opinion - Company
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the Company
maintained proper accounting records for the year ended 31st March 2012
and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Company’s
state of affairs as at 31st March 2012 and its profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
Opinion - Group
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs as at 31st March 2012 and the profit and cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards, of the Company and its subsidiary dealt with thereby, so far as
concerns the shareholders of the Company.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
These financial statements also comply with the requirements of Sections
153(2) to 153(7) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombo
10th August 2012
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Income Statement
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees

Note		Consolidated		 Company

For the year ended 31 March		

2012

2011

2012

2011

4

741,654,063

561,647,269

741,654,063

561,647,269

Cost of sales		

(637,014,265)

(480,951,071)

(637,014,265)

(480,951,071)

Gross profit		

104,639,798

80,696,198

104,639,798

80,696,198

6

47,281,751

49,644,332

47,281,751

49,644,332

Distribution expenses		

(27,716,992)

(15,721,869)

(27,716,992)

(15,721,869)

Administration expenses		

(91,995,672)

(59,110,373)

(91,986,672)

(59,095,373)

Results from operating activities

7

32,208,885

55,508,288

32,217,885

55,523,288

Finance income		

21,630,049

23,297,515

21,630,049

23,297,515

Finance costs		

(41,056,186)

(31,645,037)

(41,056,043)

(31,644,287)

Net finance costs

8

(19,426,137)

(8,347,522)

(19,425,994)

(8,346,772)

Profit before income tax		

12,782,748

47,160,766

12,791,891

47,176,516

Income tax expense

9

(3,519,654)

(821,528)

(3,519,654)

(821,653)

Profit for the year		

9,263,094

46,339,238

9,272,237

46,354,863

Revenue

Other operating income

Profits Attributable to :					
Owners of the Company		

9,263,091

46,339,240

9,272,237

46,354,863

Non Controlling Interest		

3

(2)

-

-

Profit for the year		

9,263,094

46,339,238

9,272,237

46,354,863

0.14

0.95

0.14

0.95

Basic earnings per share

10

					
The notes on pages 39 to 67 are an integral part of these financial statements					
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Balance Sheet
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees

Note		Consolidated		 Company

For the year ended 31 March		

2012

2011

2012

2011

ASSETS 					
Non-current assets					
Property, plant & equipment
11
327,148,135
264,539,307
327,148,135
264,539,307
12
45,000,000
Investment in subsidiary
45,000,000
13
45,182,919
45,041,165
243,918
102,168
Intangible assets
Total non-current assets		
372,331,054
309,580,472
309,641,475
372,392,053
					
Current assets					
Inventories
14
87,813,149
64,122,085
87,813,149
64,122,086
Trade receivables
15
215,996,036
150,436,643
215,996,036
150,436,643
16.1
180,974,648
139,815,331
180,974,648
139,815,331
Amounts due from related parties
17
12,048,572
13,095,258
12,048,572
13,095,258
Pre-payments & other reccoverables
Income tax receivables		
4,494,271
3,724,697
4,494,270
3,724,695
18
5,990,334
5,317,391
5,990,334
5,317,391
Deposits & advances
Short term investments
19
5,345,319
5,345,319
20.1 & 2
177,100,049
53,419,123
177,049,794
Cash & cash equivalents
53,460,358
Total current assets
566,081,451
566,122,687
553,611,454
553,561,198
863,202,673
938,453,741
863,191,926
938,473,504
Total assets		
					
Equity and liabilities					
Stated capital
21
333,857,588
333,857,588
333,857,588
333,857,588
22
134,000,948
147,349,565
134,000,948
Revaluation reserve
147,349,565
Retained earnings
23
(9,656,547)
(18,919,641)
(9,631,778)
(18,904,015)
Total equity attributable to the
471,550,606
448,938,895
471,575,373
448,954,520
equity holders of the company		
Non-controlling interest		
4
1
Total equity		
471,550,610
448,938,896
471,575,373
448,954,520
					
Non-current liabilities					
Employee benefits
24
13,374,589
8,319,562
13,374,589
8,319,562
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
25.1
52,565,381
32,401,524
52,565,381
32,401,524
26
2,708,911
3,792,476
2,708,911
Deferred income
3,792,476
27
22,051,704
29,402,272
22,051,704
29,402,272
Government grant
28
3,063,284
179,524
3,063,284
Deferred tax liabilities
179,524
93,763,869
74,095,358
93,763,869
74,095,358
Total non-current liabilities		
					
Current liabilities			
Trade payables
29
49,410,890
27,796,114
49,410,890
27,796,113
Amount due to related parties
16.2
12,524,216
11,957,327
12,524,216
11,957,327
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
25.2
259,695,981
245,072,362
259,695,981
245,072,362
Deposits & advances payables
30
20,909,282
20,710,890
20,909,282
20,710,890
Accrued expenses & other creditors
31
17,422,214
20,533,522
17,417,214
20,528,648
Bank overdrafts
20.3
13,176,679
14,087,457
13,176,679
14,087,457
Total current liabilities		
373,139,262
340,157,672
373,134,262
340,152,795
466,903,131
414,253,030
466,898,131
414,248,153
Total liabilities		
Total equity & liabilities		
938,453,741
863,191,926
938,473,504
863,202,673
					
The notes on pages 39 to 67 are an integral part of these financial statements
These financial statements are prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.
				
Chief Financial Officer 				
				
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.			
Approved and signed for an on behalf of Board of Directors, 				

				
Mr. A. R. H. Fernando

Mr. J. Raddalgoda

				
Colombo				
10th August 2012						
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Statement of Changes in Equity
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees
Consolidated						
Attributable to equity holders of the company

Stated
Revaluation
Retained
Total
NonTotal
capital
reserves
earnings		controlling
					
interest		
Balance as at 01st April 2010
Effect of acquisitions
Profit for the year
Issue of ordinary shares
IPO Expenses
Balance as at 31 st March 2011

15,000,020

134,000,948

(49,089,851)

99,911,117

-

99,911,117

-

-

-

-

3

3

-

-

46,339,238

46,339,238

(2)

46,339,236

318,857,568

-

-

318,857,568

-

318,857,568

-

-

(16,169,028)

(16,169,028)

-

(16,169,028)

333,857,588

134,000,948

(18,919,641)

448,938,895

1

448,938,896

Profit for the year

-

-

9,263,094

9,263,094

3

9,263,097

Revaluation surplus

-

15,704,255

-

15,704,255

-

15,704,255

(2,355,638)
(2,355,638)
(2,355,638)
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus
Balance as at 31 st March 2012
333,857,588
147,349,565
(9,656,547)
471,550,606
4
471,550,610
						
						
Company						
Stated
Revaluation
			
			
capital
reserves
				

Retained
earnings

Total

Balance as at 01st April 2010			

15,000,020

134,000,948

(49,089,851)

99,911,117

Profit for the year			

-

-

46,354,864

46,354,864

Issue of ordinary shares			

318,857,568

-

-

318,857,568

IPO Expenses			

-

-

(16,169,028)

(16,169,028)

Balance as at 31st March 2011			

333,857,588

134,000,948

(18,904,015)

448,954,520

Profit for the year			

-

-

9,272,237

9,272,237

Revaluation surplus			

-

15,704,255

-

15,704,255

Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus			

-

(2,355,638)

-

(2,355,638)

Balance as at 31st March 2012			

333,857,588

147,349,565

(9,631,778)

471,575,375

						
The notes on pages 39 to 67 are an integral part of these financial statements					
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Cash Flow Statement
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
For the year ended 31 March		

2012

2011

2012

Cash flow from operating activities				
Profit before taxation		
12,782,748
47,160,767
12,791,891
Adjustments for:				
Depreciation		 15,591,534
8,598,986
15,591,534
5,572,521
1,360,251
5,572,521
Provision for gratuity		
Provision for slow moving inventories		
(495,291)
504,898
(495,291)
Provision for bad debts		
153,870
Amortisation of Deffered Income		
(1,083,565)
(541,782)
(1,083,565)
Amortisation of Ice Tea Grant		
(7,350,568)
(7,350,568)
Interest expenses		
22,064,910
27,680,812
22,064,910
(1,016,432)
(1,731,402)
(1,016,432)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment		
		 46,065,857
83,186,400
46,075,000
				
Change in:				
- Inventories		
(23,195,772)
(17,386,662)
(23,195,772)
- Trade receivables		
(65,559,393)
(42,390,073)
(65,559,393)
- Prepayments & other receivables		
1,046,686
(2,094,085)
1,046,686
- Amount due from related party 		
(41,159,317)
(62,299,037)
(41,159,317)
- Deposits & advances receivables		
(672,943)
(3,143,314)
(672,943)
21,614,777
(5,408,959)
21,614,777
- Trade payables		
- Amount due to related party 		
(5,061,605)
- Deffered income		
4,334,258
- Deposits & advances payables		
198,392
(978,490)
198,392
- Accrued expenses & other creditors		
(6,732,964)
2,526,602
(6,733,089)
(68,394,677)
(48,714,965)
(68,385,659)
Cash generated/(used in) from operating activities		
				
Interest paid		
(21,498,021)
(26,852,598)
(21,498,021)
(205,301)
(517,494)
Gratuity paid		
(517,494)
Tax paid		
(139,450)
(362,046)
(139,449)
(76,134,910)
(90,540,623)
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities		 (90,549,642)

2011

47,176,517
8,598,986
1,360,251
504,898
153,870
(541,782)
27,680,812
(1,731,402)
83,202,150

(17,386,662)
(42,390,073)
(2,094,085)
(62,299,037)
(3,143,315)
(5,408,959)
(5,061,606)
4,334,258
(973,490)
2,516,602
(48,704,217)
(26,852,598)
(205,301)
(362,046)
(76,124,162)
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
For the year ended 31 March		

2012

2011

2012

Cash flows from investing activities				
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment		
(62,655,798)
(37,819,931)
(62,655,802)
(141,750)
(102,168)
(141,750)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets		
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired		
(44,938,997)
Investment in subsidiary		
(5,345,319)
(5,345,319)
Short Term Investment		
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		
1,176,124
2,573,058
1,176,124
Net cash used in investing activities		 (66,966,743)
(80,288,038)
(66,966,746)
				
Cash flows from financing activities				
Issue of ordinary shares		
318,857,568
IPO Expenses		
(16,169,028)
Change in finance lease liabilities		
16,215,842
1,173,606
16,215,842
18,571,635
Change in bank borrowings		
18,571,635
(7,312,169)
Net cash flows from financing activities		
34,787,477
296,549,977
34,787,477
				
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		
(122,728,912)
140,127,029
(122,719,892)
Cash and cash equivalents at 01st April 		
163,012,593
22,885,564
162,962,338
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period (Note A)
40,283,679
163,012,593
40,242,444
				
Note A -Cash and cash equivalents				
Cash in hand and cash at banks
53,460,358
177,100,050
53,419,123
Bank overdrafts		
(13,176,679)
(14,087,457)
(13,176,679)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period		
40,283,679
163,012,593
40,242,444
				
The notes on pages 39 to 67 are an integral part of these financial statements				
				

2011

(37,819,931)
(102,168)
(45,000,000)
2,573,058
(80,349,041)

318,857,568
(16,169,028)
1,173,606
(7,312,169)
296,549,977
140,076,774
22,885,564
162,962,338

177,049,795
(14,087,457)
162,962,338
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Notes to the Financial
1

Reporting entity

Statements
(d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SLASs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

HVA Foods PLC (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in Sri
Lanka. HVA Foods PLC is 61% owned subsidiary of HVA Lanka
Exports (Pvt) Ltd. The Company was incorporated on 22nd August
1997. The Registered Office of the company is located at
No. 39 A, Linton Road, Kandana. The principal activity of the
company is manufacturing and exporting of value added tea.
Ordinary shares of the company are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange & the company has become a public quoted limited
company since 4th May 2011.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Consolidated Financial Statements
The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2012,
comprise “the company” referring to HVA Foods PLC as the holding
company and “the group” referring to the companies whose
accounts have been consolidated therein.

3

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on 10th August 2012.
Basis of preparation

(a)

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of HVA Foods PLC have been prepared
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLASs) laid
down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the
requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

(b)

(a)

Change in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the
previous financial year, the useful life of the assets for depreciation has
been revised as suggested by an engineer.

(b)

Basis of consolidation
The financial statements of the Group represent the consolidation of the
financial statements of the company and its subsidiary.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis.
No adjustments have been made for inflationary factors in the
financial statements.

(c)

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all periods presented in these financial statements, and have been
applied consistently by the company.

Approval of the Financial Statements

2

Use of estimates and judgments

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in the Sri Lanka rupees,
which is the company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in Sri Lanka rupees has been rounded to the nearest
rupee.

(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the company. Control exists
when the company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain the
benefits from its activities which is evident when the company controls
the composition of the board of directors of the entity or hold more than
50% of the issued shares of the entity, or 50% of the voting rights of the
entity, or is entitled to receive more than half of every dividend from
shares carrying unlimited right to participate in distribution of profits or
capital.
Entities that are subsidiaries of another entity which is a subsidiary of the
company are also treated as subsidiaries of the company.
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The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements when control effectively commences and until
control effectively ceases.

(c)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective
functional currency at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the foreign exchange rate at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss.

The following subsidiary has been consolidated.
-

HVA Holdings (Pvt) Limited

(ii)

Non Controlling interest

-

Subsidiary

The proportion of the profit or loss after taxation applicable to outside
shareholders of subsidiary companies is reflected under “Non-controlling
Interests” in the consolidated financial statement.

(d)

Short-term investments are measured at the lower of cost and
market value on an aggregate portfolio basis, with any resultant gain
or loss recognized in income statements.

(iii) Goodwill
(e)

Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Recognition & measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost except
Land & Building that are at fair value less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost
of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to
a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located.

Goodwill is initially recognized at cost. Such goodwill is identified into
cash generating units and is annually tested for impairment. After initial
recognition goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.
The goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries is presented as an
intangible asset.
If the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the cost of the acquisition
of the entity, it is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

(iv) Reporting date

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of property, plant and are recognized net
within “other income” in profit or loss. When re-valued assets are
sold, the amounts included in the revaluation surplus reserve are
transferred to retained earnings.

The group’s subsidiary has a common financial year.
(v)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra group balances and income or expenses arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated in full in the consolidated financial
statements.

Investments
Investments in subsidiary companies are valued at cost less provision
for fall in value of investments and treated as non-current asset in the
parent company’s financial statements.

The interest of outside shareholders in the net assets employed of those
companies are reflected under the heading “Non-controlling Interests”
in the balance sheet.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition of a
subsidiary over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Foreign currency

(ii)

Subsequent costs
The Company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such
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an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are
recognized in the income statement as an expenses as incurred.

(v)

Revaluation has been performed on freehold land and buildings by a
professionally qualified valuer using the market value method in the year
ended 31/03/2011and the machinery – heavy duty & stores equipment
– heavy duty also revalued by a professionally qualified valuer using
the market value method in the year ended 31/03/2012. The surplus is
recognized on the net carrying value of the asset and is transferred to a
revaluation reserve after restating the asset at the revalued amount. The
company revalues land and buildings at least once in five years which
is stated at its fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
impairment loss.

(iii) Derecognition
Item of property, plant & equipment are derecognized upon
replacement, disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset is included in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognized.

(vi) Leased assets

(iv) Depreciation

Leases in terms of which the company assumes substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon
initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment of the company is
provided for on a consistent basis, over the period appropriate to the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Generally assets are written off on
a straight-line method over the following periods.
		

2011/12

2010/11

Building

20 years

20 years

Motor vehicles

04 years

04 years

Stores equipments – heavy duty

20 years

-

Stores equipments – light weight

10 years

-

Stores equipments – other

05 years

-

Stores equipments

-

04 years

Furniture & fittings

10 years

10 years

Plant & machinery – heavy duty

20 years

-

Plant & machinery – light weight

10 years

-

Plant & machinery – other

05 years

-

-

04 years

Software equipments

04 years

04 years

Tea room equipments

04 years

04 years

Office equipments

04 years

04 years

Name board

10 years

10 years

Tea cafe assets

05 years

-

Ice tea equipments & others

04 years

-

Plant & machinery

Revaluation

Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for
use and ceases at the earlier of the date the asset is classified as held
for sale and the date that the asset is derecognized.

Other leases are operating leases and, are not recognized on the
company’s balance sheet.
(f)

Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic
benefits that are attributable to the enterprise and the cost of the
assets can be measured reliably in accordance with SLAS 37: Intangible
Assets. Accordingly, these assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses
(accounting policy j).
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the assets is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes
in accounting estimates. Amortization expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives, from the date they are available for use.
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The class of Intangible assets			
Useful Life
Computer Software					4 years

from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. Such
intangibles are not amortized.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.
(j)
(g)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
cost necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories is based on the
Weighted – Average Cost principle and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress,
cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

(h)

(i)

(ii)

The liability is not externally funded, nor actuarially valued. The
Gratuity Liability is valued using Gratuity Formula method as allowed
by the revised Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No.16 - Employee
Benefits.
(k)

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows

Provisions
A provision is recognized when the company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, where
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the quantum of the outflow.

Impairment
The carrying amounts of the company’s non-financial assets, other than
inventories and deferred tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Defined benefit plans
Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the first year
of service for all employees in conformity with the SLAS 16. However
under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability to an
employee arises only on completion of 5 years of continued services.

Trade receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to be
realized net of provisions for bad and doubtful receivables. Other
receivables and dues from related parties are recognized at cost less
provision for bad and doubtful receivables.

(i)

Defined contribution plans
The Company contributes 12% and 3% of gross salary to the
Employees Provident Fund and Employees Trust Fund respectively, in
terms of EPF Act No15 of 1958 as amended and to Employers Trust
Fund in terms of the ETF Act No.46 of 1980 as amended.

Trade and other receivables

A provision for doubtful debts is made when the debt exceeds 360 days,
and collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are
written off when identified.

Employee benefits

(l)

Government grants
A government grant is recognized in the balance sheet initially as
deferred income when there is a reasonable assurance that it will be
received and the conditions attached to it are complied with.
Grants that compensate the group for expenses incurred are
recognized as revenue in the income statement on a systematic
basis in the periods in which the expense is incurred. Grants that
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amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for
the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences measured
at the rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

compensate the group for the cost of an asset are recognized in the
income statement as revenue on a systematic basis over the useful
life.
(m) Revenue
(i)

Goods sold
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized in the income
statement when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognized if there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration
due, associated costs or the possible return of goods also if there is
continuing management involvement with the goods.

(ii)

Interest Income

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
(iii) Economic service charges
As per provisions of the Economic Service Charges Act No. 13 of 2006,
economic service charges is payable on the liable turnover at specific
rates. ESC is deductible from the income tax liability. Any unclaimed
liability can be carried forward and set off against the income tax payable
as per the relevant provision in the Act.

Interest income recognized as it accrues in profit or loss.
(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in the income statement on the date
that the entity`s right to receive is established.
(p)
(n)

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand
deposits and short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible
to know amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes
in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits in banks net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Investments with short maturities i.e.
three months or less from the date of acquisition are also treated as
cash equivalents.
(o)

Taxation

(i)

Income tax
The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income &
expenditure as reported in the financial statements and computed in
accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No.10 of
2006 and amendments there to. The company enjoys a concessionary
tax rate for 20 years from 1997 due to a BOI agreement.

(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated cost.

Cash and cash equivalents
(q)

Expenses

(i)

Expenses recognition
Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of a direct
association between the cost incurred and earning of specific item of
income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in
maintaining the property, plant & equipment in state of efficiency has
been charged to revenue in arriving at the profit for the year.

(ii)

Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred, except to the extent where borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of an
asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale, are capitalized as part of that asset.

(iii) Finance lease payments
Minimum lease payments
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
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allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

(v)

All material post balance sheet events have been considered and
where appropriate adjustments or disclosures have been made in
respective notes to the financial statements.

(iv) Finance income & expenses
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest
income is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss.

(w) Contingent liabilities
Contingencies are possible assets or obligations that arise from
a past event and would be confirmed only on the occurrence or
non-occurrence of uncertain future events, which are beyond the
company’s control.

Finance expenses comprise interest expenses on borrowings, bank
charges and debit tax.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
(r)

Earnings per share

(x)

Segmental information
A segment is a distinguishable component of the company that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business segments),
or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risk and rewards
that are different from those of other segments.
The Board of Directors believes that it is not practical to provide
segmental disclosures relating to segment costs and expenses and
subsequently segment profits and losses, since a realistic allocation
cannot be made. The fixed assets used in the company’s business are
not identifiable to any particular reportable segment and can be used
interchangeably among segments. Consequently management believes
that it is not practical to provide segmental disclosures relating to total
assets since a realistic analysis among the various operating segments is
not possible.

(t)

Comparative figures
Whenever necessary comparative figures are reclassified to conform to
the changes in presentation in the current year and disclosed as notes to
the financial statements.

(u)

Cash flow statement
The cash flow of the company has been presented in using “indirect
method” in accordance with SLAS-09: Cash flow statement

Directors responsibility
The board of directors takes responsibility for the preparation
and presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and the Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards.

The group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
(s)

Events occurring after the balance sheet date

(y)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued a new
framework and Sri Lanka Accounting Standards which will become
applicable from 1st January 2012.
Accordingly these Standards have not been applied in preparing
these Financial Statements as they were not effective for the year
ended 31st December 2011. These Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
comprise Accounting Standards prefixed both SLFRS (corresponding
to IFRS) and LKAS (corresponding to IAS). Disclosure requirement
under SLAS 10.30 and 10.31 have been exempted by the ICASL and
therefore all differences and impacts arising from the new Standards
are not presented in these Financial Statements.
The Company has not carried out a preliminary assessment of the
gaps between the present Standards and the new ones and thereby
not quantified the differences that may arise due to the adoption of
new SLASs which became effective for the company from 1st April
2012.
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2012
2011
2012

2011

Revenue					
Export sales		
717,732,330
545,855,302
717,732,330
545,855,302
Local sales		
15,791,967
23,921,733
15,791,967
23,921,733
			
741,654,063
561,647,269
741,654,063
561,647,269
4

5

Segmental Information

5.1

Geographical segment analysis (by location of customers)
Russia & the CIS States		
Far East /Asia		
Europe		
USA / Canada		
Middle East		
			
5.2

328,609,317
197,561,944
198,193,845
14,989,895
2,299,062
741,654,063

338,144,558
93,187,661
105,043,444
25,059,335
212,271
561,647,269

328,609,317
197,561,944
198,193,845
14,989,895
2,299,062
741,654,063

338,144,558
93,187,661
105,043,444
25,059,335
212,271
561,647,269

There are no separately distinguishable items to identify business segmental and assets & liabilities for the above segments.

Other operating income				
Packing income		
31,644,642
46,023,308
Profit on sale of property, plant & equip.		
1,016,432
1,731,402
Amortization of deferred income		
1,083,564
541,782
Amortization of ice tea project grant		
7,350,568
Other income from heladive tea café		
4,293,453
Dividend income -quoted		
25,000
Other income		
1,868,092
1,347,840
			
47,281,751
49,644,332
6

31,644,642
1,016,432
1,083,564
7,350,568
4,293,453
25,000
1,868,092
47,281,751

46,023,308
1,731,402
541,782
1,347,840
49,644,332
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
7

2011

Result from operating activities					
The result from operating activities is stated after charging all
expenses including following,
545,000
Auditors’ remuneration		
Directors’ emoluments including Non-Executive Directors’ consultation fees 20,961,016
Provision for slow moving inventories		
5,291,593
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment		
Donation		
9,100
681,484
Legal & secretarial expenses 		
Provision for gratuity		
5,572,521
Salaries & wages		
38,866,861
EPF/VPF		
4,459,333
ETF		
1,114,831
Bonus & incentive		
1,288,608

465,000
10,208,106
504,898
2,719,146
3,350
659,501
1,360,251
28,534,628
2,259,460
564,865
1,744,805

540,000
20,961,016
5,291,593
9,100
677,484
5,572,521
38,866,861
4,459,333
1,114,831
1,288,608

450,000
10,208,106
504,898
2,719,146
3,350
659,501
1,360,251
28,534,628
2,259,460
564,865
1,744,805

8

Finance income and expense					
Finance income					
15,806,397
Interest income		
15,806,397
4,314,418
4,314,418
Interest from debtors		
5,823,652
187,858
5,823,652
187,858
Foreign exchange gain 		
18,795,239
18,795,239
			
21,630,049
23,297,515
21,630,049
23,297,515
Finance costs					
Loan interest - packing credit		
(4,215,470)
(3,977,177)
(4,215,470)
(3,977,177)
Loan interest - term loan		
(2,910,510)
(9,082,512)
(2,910,510)
(9,082,512)
Interest - Lake Drive Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.		
(139,126)
(297,816)
(139,126)
(297,816)
(530,398)
(427,763)
Interest - Mrs.V.S.A.Fernando		
(427,763)
(530,398)
Interest on lease rentals		
(2,036,266)
(1,154,693)
(2,036,266)
(1,154,693)
Interest on bill discounts		
(8,928,536)
(9,085,188)
(8,928,536)
(9,085,188)
Over due interest		
(887,095)
(1,359,995)
(887,095)
(1,359,995)
Bank overdraft interest		
(2,520,144)
(2,193,033)
(2,520,144)
(2,193,033)
Bill discount charges		
(1,814,198)
(1,342,934)
(1,814,198)
(1,342,934)
Factoring charges		
(109,522)
(156,749)
(109,522)
(156,749)
Bank charges		
(2,777,645)
(2,464,542)
(2,777,502)
(2,463,792)
Foreign Exchange loss		
(14,289,911)
(14,289,911)
			
(41,056,186)
(31,645,037)
(41,056,043)
(31,644,287)
Net finance costs		
(19,426,137)
(8,347,522)
(19,425,994)
(8,346,772)
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
9

2011

Income tax expense				

Current income tax
Current tax charges		
3,599,384
1,703,966
(Over) / under provision of previous year		
(607,852)
			
2,991,532
1,703,966
Deferred tax				
Deferred tax charge / (reversal) (Note-28)		
528,122
(882,438)
Income tax for the year		
3,519,654
821,528
9.1

9.2

3,599,384
(607,852)
2,991,532

1,704,091
1,704,091

528,122
3,519,654

(882,438)
821,653

Reconciliation of accounting profit to tax expenses
Business profit / (loss) before tax		
Exempt Income & other source of income		
Aggregate disallowable expenses		
Aggregate allowable expenses		
Taxable profit / (loss) for the year		

12,791,891
(31,105,614)
29,229,302
(27,575,113)
(16,659,534)

47,160,766
(49,809,524)
26,332,072
(16,208,834)
7,474,480

12,791,891
(31,105,614)
29,229,302
(27,575,113)
(16,659,534)

47,176,516
(49,824,050)
26,332,072
(16,208,834)
7,475,704

Tax losses brought forward 		
Tax loss incurred during the year		
Utilization of tax losses		
Tax losses carried forward 		
Total statutory income - other source of income		
Deductions; utilization of tax losses		
Taxable income - other source of income		
Concessionary rate @ 15%		
Standard rate @ 28% (2010/11 - 35%)		
Tax on undistributed profit @ 15% (2009/10)		
Tax on undistributed profit @ 15% (2010/11)		
SRL @ 1.5%		
Total current tax for the year		

(80,085,535)
(16,659,534)
7,252,620
(89,492,449)
20,565,561
(7,252,620)
13,312,941
3,599,384
3,599,384

(82,702,032)
2,616,068
(80,085,964)
7,474,481
(2,616,068)
4,858,413
189,293
837,674
156,249
492,900
27,851
1,703,967

(80,085,535)
(16,659,534)
7,252,620
(89,492,449)
20,565,561
(7,252,620)
13,312,941
3,599,384
3,599,384

(82,702,032)
2,616,497
(80,085,535)
7,475,704
(2,616,497)
4,859,207
189,408
837,684
156,249
492,900
27,851
1,704,092

Exemption on income earned from income received from foreign currency denominated accounts.
Deferred tax has been computed using the current tax rates applicable to company.
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
10

2011

Basic earnings / (loss) per share				
The calculation of basic earning per share is based on the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders		
9,263,094
46,339,238
9,272,237
46,354,863
Weighted average number of ordinary shares		
66,428,660
48,957,012
66,428,660
48,957,012
0.95
Basic earnings per share		
0.14
0.14
0.95

		
		
11

Property, plant & equipment

11.1

Property, plant & equipment - Consolidated

As at
01-04-2011

Additions /
Transfer

Revaluation
during the year

Disposals /
Transfer

11.1.1 Free hold assets				
At cost / valuation
Land
120,110,000
4,072,563
Buildings
68,882,480
8,079,703
Machinery - Heavy duty
110,428,907
76,294,651
(92,473,884)
Machinery - Light weight
1,937,651
Machinery - Others
1,714,596
Machinery
88,382,826
(88,382,826)
Generator
1,840,353
(1,840,353)
Ice Tea Equipments & Others
4,957,698
1,788,459
Motor vehicles
1,252,473
395,044
(1,069,565)
Stores equipment - Heavy duty
834,500
218,720
(546,800)
Stores equipment - Light weight
1,624,606
Stores equipment - Others
876,321
Stores equipment
2,628,487
(2,628,487)
Office equipment
4,025,204
2,627,524
Furniture and fittings
638,852
3,525,863
Name board
119,234
Software equipments
644,855
Tea café assets
3,203,400
Tea room equipments
8,845
		
293,482,462
141,117,982
76,513,371
(186,941,915)

As at
31-03-2012

124,182,563
76,962,183
94,249,674
1,937,651
1,714,596
6,746,157
577,951
506,420
1,624,606
876,321
6,652,728
4,164,715
119,234
644,855
3,203,400
8,845
324,171,899

Lease hold assets
At cost					
Motor vehicles
23,763,443
23,763,443
Machinery
8,300,000
(3,300,000)
5,000,000
		
8,300,000
23,763,443
(3,300,000)
28,763,443
Gross carrying amount excluding
capital work-in-progress
301,782,462
164,881,425
76,513,371
(190,241,915)
352,935,342
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees
		
		

As at
01-04-2011

Additions /
Revaluation
Transfer during the year

Disposals /
Transfer

As at
31-03-2012

11.1.2 In the course of construction / development				
Capital-work-in-progress
		
Total gross carrying amount

4,512,101
4,512,101
306,294,563

28,874,412
28,874,412
193,755,837

76,513,371

(33,257,277)
(33,257,277)
(223,499,192)

129,236
129,236
353,064,578

		
		

As at
01-04-2011

Depreciation
for the year

Revaluation
during the year

Disposals /
Transfer

As at
31-03-2012

11.1.3 Depreciation & impairment losses
At cost / valuation
Buildings
Machinery - Heavy duty
Machinery - Light weight
Machinery - Others
Machinery
Generator
Ice Tea Equipments & Others
Motor vehicles
Stores equipment - Heavy duty
Stores equipment - Light weight
Stores equipment - Others
Stores equipment
Office equipments
Furniture and fittings
Name board
Software equipments
Tea café assets
Tea room equipments
		

3,161,891
27,402,876
69,854
1,230,517
2,451,872
2,577,180
272,271
12,093
644,854
37,823,408

3,598,426
5,060,972
88,423
286,051
1,433,157
24,693
34,123
19,117
135,023
707,988
186,045
11,926
167,689
194
11,753,827

(31,664,768)
(546,800)
(32,211,568)

31,664,768
117,910
635,341
(27,402,876)
(69,854)
(1,069,565)
546,800
1,364,491
204,850
(2,451,872)
541,228
4,081,221

6,760,317
5,060,972
206,333
921,392
1,433,157
185,645
34,123
1,383,608
339,873
3,826,396
458,316
24,019
644,854
167,689
194
21,446,888

Lease hold assets
At cost					
Motor vehicles
2,587,704
2,587,704
Machinery
3,931,848
1,250,003
(3,300,000)
1,881,851
		
3,931,848
3,837,707
(3,300,000)
4,469,555
Depreciation & impairment losses
41,755,256
15,591,534
(32,211,568)
781,221
25,916,443
11.1.4 Carrying amount				
At cost / valuation
Capital-work-in-progress
Total carrying amount of PPE

260,027,206 				
4,512,101 				
264,539,307 				

327,018,899
129,236
327,148,135
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees
		
		
11.2

As at
01-04-2011

Additions /
Transfer

Revaluation
during the year

Disposals /
Transfer

As at
31-03-2012

Property, plant & equipment - Company					

11.2.1 Free hold assets
At cost / valuation						
Land
120,110,000
4,072,563
124,182,563
Buildings
68,882,480
8,079,703
76,962,183
Machinery - Heavy duty
110,428,907
76,294,651
(92,473,884)
94,249,674
Machinery - Light weight
1,937,651
1,937,651
Machinery - Others
1,714,596
1,714,596
Machinery
88,382,826
(88,382,826)
Generator
1,840,353
(1,840,353)
Ice Tea Equipments & Others
4,957,698
1,788,459
6,746,157
Motor vehicles
1,252,473
395,044
(1,069,565)
577,951
Stores equipment - Heavy duty
834,500
218,720
(546,800)
506,420
Stores equipment - Light weight
1,624,606
1,624,606
Stores equipment - Others
876,321
876,321
Stores equipment
2,628,487
(2,628,487)
Office equipment
4,025,204
2,627,524
6,652,728
Furniture and fittings
638,852
3,525,863
4,164,715
Name board
119,234
119,234
Software equipments
644,855
644,855
Tea café assets
3,203,400
3,203,400
Tea room equipments
8,845
8,845
		
293,482,462
141,117,982
76,513,371
(186,941,915)
324,171,899
Lease hold assets
				
At cost					
Motor vehicles
23,763,443
23,763,443
Machinery
8,300,000
(3,300,000)
5,000,000
		
8,300,000
23,763,443
(3,300,000)
28,763,443
Gross carrying amount excluding
capital work-in-progress
301,782,462
164,881,425
76,513,371
(190,241,915)
352,935,342
11.2.2 In the course of construction / development					
Capital-work-in-progress
4,512,101
28,874,412
(33,257,277)
		
4,512,101
28,874,412
(33,257,277)
Total gross carrying amount
306,294,563
193,755,837
76,513,371
(223,499,192)
					

129,236
129,236
353,064,578
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees
		
		

As at
01-04-2011

Depreciation
for the year

Revaluation
during the year

Disposals /
Transfer

11.2.3 Depreciation & impairment losses
At cost / valuation					
Buildings
3,161,891
3,598,426
Machinery - Heavy duty
5,060,972
(31,664,768)
31,664,768
Machinery - Light weight
88,423
117,910
Machinery - Others
286,051
635,341
Machinery
27,402,876
(27,402,876)
Generator
69,854
(69,854)
Ice Tea Equipments & Others
1,433,157
Motor vehicles
1,230,517
24,693
(1,069,565)
Stores equipment - Heavy duty
34,123
(546,800)
546,800
Stores equipment - Light weight
19,117
1,364,491
Stores equipment - Others
135,023
204,850
Stores equipment
2,451,872
(2,451,872)
Office equipments
2,577,180
707,988
541,228
Furniture and fittings
272,271
186,045
Name board
12,093
11,926
Software equipments
644,854
Tea café assets
167,689
Tea room equipments
194
		
37,823,408
11,753,827
(32,211,568)
4,081,221

As at
31-03-2012

6,760,317
5,060,972
206,333
921,392
1,433,157
185,645
34,123
1,383,608
339,873
3,826,396
458,316
24,019
644,854
167,689
194
21,446,888

Lease hold assets					
At cost					
Motor vehicles
2,587,704
2,587,704
Machinery
3,931,848
1,250,003
(3,300,000)
1,881,851
		
3,931,848
3,837,707
(3,300,000)
4,469,555
Depreciation & impairment losses
41,755,256
15,591,534
(32,211,568)
781,221
25,916,443
11.2.4 Carrying amount					
At cost / valuation
Capital-work-in-progress
Total carrying amount of PPE

260,027,206 				
4,512,101 				
264,539,307 				

327,018,899
129,236
327,148,135
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012

2011

Land				
At cost		
10,082,563
6,010,000
At valuation		
114,100,000
114,100,000
			
124,182,563
120,110,000

10,082,563
114,100,000
124,182,563

6,010,000
114,100,000
120,110,000

Buildings				
At cost		
13,921,933
5,842,230
At valuation		
63,040,250
63,040,250
			
76,962,183
68,882,480

13,921,933
63,040,250
76,962,183

5,842,230
63,040,250
68,882,480

Machinery - Heavy duty				
At cost		
17,955,022
At valuation		
76,294,652
			
94,249,674
-

17,955,022
76,294,652
94,249,674

-

Stores equipment - Heavy Duty				
At cost		
287,700
At valuation		
218,720
			
506,420
-

287,700
218,720
506,420

-

56,050,449
246,803,799
24,293,888
327,148,136

200,282,917
59,888,239
4,368,152
264,539,308

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

Carrying amount				
At cost		
56,050,449
200,282,917
At valuation		
246,803,799
59,888,239
On finance lease		
24,293,888
4,368,152
			
327,148,136
264,539,308
11.8

During the year, the Group has capitalized, amounting to Rs. Nil. (2010/11 - Rs. 963,288/-) as borrowing cost. Total borrowing cost capitalized
to-date amounts to Rs. 2,756,534/-. (2010/11 - Rs. 2,756,534/-)

11.9

During the year, the Group acquired Property, plant & equipment to the aggregate value of Rs. 81,254,198/- (2010/11 - Rs. 115,869,153/-) of
which Rs. 18,598,400/- (2010/2011 - 5,000,000) was acquired by means of finance leases and Cash payments amounting to Rs. 62,655,798/(2010/11 - Rs.37,819,931/-) were made during the period for purchase of Property, plant & equipments.			

11.10 Property, plant & equipment include fully-depreciated assets, the cost of which as at 31st March 2012 amounted to Rs. 4,338,957/-. (2010/11 Rs. 4,983,007/-)				
11.11 Assets pledged as security against borrowings are disclosed in note no.35.
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11.12 The details of freehold land & buildings and other properties which are stated at revalued amounts are as follows;
Company property		
			

Method of

Effective date

Revalued

valuation

of valuation

amount

Property valuer

a

Land situated at 39 A, Linton Road, Kandana		

Open market value

31-03-2010 Rs.114,100,000/-

Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara

b

Building situated at 39 A, Linton Road, Kandana

Open market value

31-03-2010

Rs.63,040,250/-

Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara

c

Machinery - heavy duty at Linton Road, Kandana

Open market value

01-04-2011

Rs.76,294,651/-

Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara

d

Stores equipment - heavy duty at Linton Road, Kandana Open market value

01-04-2011

Rs.218,720/-

Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara

Freehold land was revalued during the financial year ended 31st March 1998 by Mr. S. D. P. Senadhira, Chartered Valuer. The surplus
on valuation amounted to Rs. 6,212,450/-. Further, freehold land has been valued during the year ended 31st March 2007, by Mr. P. B.
Kalugalagedara, Chartered Valuer. The Resulting surpluses was Rs. 69,874,033/- . The freehold land have been again revalued by Mr. P. B.
Kalugalagedara, Chartered Valuer in March 2010. The resulting revaluation surplus reported amounted to Rs. 22,800,000/-.
Buildings were revalued during the financial year ended 31st March 2007, by Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara, Chartered Valuer. The Resulting
surpluses was Rs. 20,050,371/-. The building have been again revalued by Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara, Chartered Valuer in March 2010. The
resulting revaluation surplus reported amounted to Rs. 6,675,857/-.
Machinery - heavy duty was revalued during the financial year ended 31st March 2012, by Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara, Chartered Valuer. The
resulting revaluation surplus reported amounted to Rs. 15,485,536/- and the revaluation surplus was transferred to the revaluation reserve.
Stores equipment - 20 heavy duty was revalued during the financial year ended 31st March 2012, by Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara, Chartered
Valuer. The resulting revaluation surplus reported amounted to Rs. 218,720/- and the revaluation surplus was transferred to the revaluation
reserve.
The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the financial statements had the assets been carried at cost less
depreciation is as follows;

All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees						
						
			Cumulative depreciation		
If assets were
Net carrying
Net carrying
				
			
Cost
carried at cost
amount
amount
			 31.03.2012
31.03.2012
31.03.2012
31.03.2011

Freehold Land
25,296,050
25,296,050
21,223,487
31,610,978
18,624,977
12,885,149
Buildings		 50,235,955
Machinery - Heavy duty
110,052,244
50,656,662
59,395,582
60,809,116
Stores equipment - Heavy duty
546,800
546,800
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11.13 During the year, the Company has identified its machinery and stores equipment as machinery - heavy duty, machinery - light weight, & machinery
- others and stores equipment - heavy duty, stores equipment - light weight & stores equipment - others, based on their revised estimated useful
life time as 20 yrs, 10 yrs & 5 yrs, respectively. Due to the above estimated life time adjustment, the depreciation has been adjusted by Rs 26 Mn
for the year 2011/12.
11.14 The details of the company’s land holdings.
				
			
(i) Land situated at 39 A, Linton Road, Nagoda, Kandana
(ii) Land situated at 39 A, Linton Road, Nagoda, Kandana
12

Extent of land

2A 2R 36P (436 perches)
20 perches

Cost of purchased		
Rs.
Year of purchased
13,617,550
6,010,000

1997/98
2010/11

Investment in Subsidiary
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company

		
2011
2012
2012

2011

Non - quoted Investment					
Ordinary shares of HVA Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.		
45,000,000
			
45,000,000

45,000,000
45,000,000

During the year 2010/11, the Company acquired 99.99% of the equity of HVA Holdings (Pvt) Ltd. HVA Holdings (Pvt) Ltd is an investment
company and has not still commenced its operations.
13
13.1

Intangible Assets
Trade mark					
Summary					
Cost
Balance as at 1st April		
44,938,997
Additions/Adjustment		
4
44,938,997
Accumilated impairment loss		
Net carrying amount as at 31st March		
44,939,001
44,938,997
Intangible assets (Trade mark) represents the excess of the cost of the business combination over the fair value of identifiable net aseets of the
subsidiary i.e. HVA Holdings (Pvt) Ltd as at the date of acquisition.
The Company acquired HVA Holdings (Pvt) Ltd on 29th September 2010 in order to use the international brand, “HELADIV” owned by HVA
Holdings (Pvt) Ltd., as per the valuation report given by PWC on 1st October 2010.
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For the purpose of purchase the subsidisry the “HELADIV” trade mark has been valued by royalty method, based on the five-year forecast sales
projects provided by the management and the below-mentioned royalty rates and have assessed the indicative value of the trade mark as at
31st December 2009 to be in the order of USD 1.08mn to USD 1.24mn (with a mid-point of USD 1.16mn)
Adopted the following royalty rates for the respective markets segments served by the Company.
- Russia & the CIS states - 6% royalty rate on net sales generated from the region.
- Far East / Asia - 6% royalty rate on net sales generated from the region.
- Europe, Americas, & Africa - 4% royalty rate on net sales generated from the region.
- New Markets & products - 3% royalty rate on net sales generated from the region.				
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection is 11.2% p.a.
There has been no impairment of intangible assets that require a provision. Method used in estimating recoverable amount was based on
value in use.
Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the asset. Key assumptions are same
as above.
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
2011
2012
		
2012

2011

13.2

Software					
Summary					
Cost
Balance as at 1st April		
108,000
108,000
Acquired during the year		
180,000
108,000
180,000
108,000
Balance as at 31st March		
288,000
108,000
288,000
108,000
						
Amortization
Balance as at 1st April		
5,832
5,832
Amortisation charged for the year		
38,250
5,832
38,250
5,832
Balance as at 31st March		
44,082
5,832
44,082
5,832
						
Carrying amount					
Balance as at 31st March		
243,918
102,168
243,918
102,168
13.3

Total
Carrying amount					
Trade mark		
44,939,001
44,938,997
Software		
243,918
102,168
243,918
102,168
Net carrying amount		
45,182,919
45,041,165
243,918
102,168
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
Inventories
Raw materials - tea		
Raw materials - ice tea concentrate & fruit base		
Flavours		
Packing materials		
Work-in-progress		
Finished goods		
Tea café stocks		
Other stocks		
			
Provision for slow moving inventories		
			

2011

14

44,225,095
946,316
8,245,764
28,629,825
650,507
5,180,068
494,716
1,632,746
90,005,037
(2,191,888)
87,813,149

25,775,511
1,054,406
6,175,202
29,927,389
145,013
2,486,746
1,244,998
66,809,264
(2,687,179)
64,122,085

44,225,095
946,316
8,245,764
28,629,825
650,507
5,180,068
494,716
1,632,746
90,005,037
(2,191,888)
87,813,149

25,775,511
1,054,406
6,175,202
29,927,389
145,013
2,486,746
1,244,998
66,809,265
(2,687,179)
64,122,086

216,366,388
(370,352)
215,996,036

150,894,023
(457,380)
150,436,643

216,366,388
(370,352)
215,996,036

150,894,023
(457,380)
150,436,643

457,380
(87,028)
370,352

804,724
(501,213)
153,869
457,380

457,380
(87,028)
370,352

804,724
(501,213)
153,869
457,380

15

Trade receivables
Trade debtors		
Provision for doubtful debts (Note-15.1)		
			
15.1

16

Provision for doubtful debts
Balance as at 1st April		
Written off during the year		
Provisions made during the year		
Balance as at 31st March 		

Amounts due from / due to related parties					

16.1 Amounts due from related parties					
		
Relationship				
519,591
HVA Farms (Pvt) Ltd
Common Directors
519,591
519,516
519,516
139,295,815
HVA Lanka Exports (Pvt) Ltd
Parent Company
180,455,057
139,295,815
180,455,057
			
180,974,648
139,815,331
180,974,648
139,815,331
16.2 Amounts due to related parties					
		
Relationship				
4,985,082
Lake Drive Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Common Directors
4,985,082
4,845,956
4,845,956
Mrs. V.S.A. Fernando
Director
7,539,134
7,111,371
7,539,134
7,111,371
11,957,327
			
12,524,216
11,957,327
12,524,216
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
2012
2012
		
2011
Prepayments & other receivables					
VAT receivables		
6,542,115
9,553,941
6,542,115
NBT receivables		
1,290,147
1,463,329
1,290,147
Insurance pre-payments		
582,180
529,226
582,180
Other deposits & pre-payments		
3,634,130
1,548,762
3,634,130
			
12,048,572
13,095,258
12,048,572

2011

17

Deposits & advances
Advance		
Refundable deposits		
Deposits		
			

9,553,941
1,463,329
529,226
1,548,762
13,095,258

18

19

5,086,593
203,741
700,000
5,990,334

2,233,650
83,741
3,000,000
5,317,391

5,086,593
203,741
700,000
5,990,334

2,233,650
83,741
3,000,000
5,317,391

Short-term investments in quoted equities at market value

		
		

2011/12					
Fair value
No of Shares

John Keells Holdings Plc
206.00 12,500 (2010/11 - Nil)
2,658,414
2,658,414
Vallibel Finance Plc
38.80 71,400 (2010/11 - Nil)
3,197,115
3,197,115
Sub total			
5,855,529
5,855,529
Less : Provision for fall in value of investment		
(510,210)
(510,210)
				 5,345,319
5,345,319
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
20

2011

Cash and cash equivalents

20.1

Short term deposits
FD’s		 28,456,157
Repo		
Exports bills saving accounts		
14,321,232
5,967,333
Exports margin accounts		
			
48,744,722

44,808,018
121,456,136
6,881,361
1,936,907
175,082,422

28,456,157
14,321,232
5,967,333
48,744,722

44,808,018
121,456,136
6,881,361
1,936,907
175,082,422

20.2

Favourable balances					
3,641,754
USD A/Cs		
479,504
3,641,754
479,504
EUR A/Cs		
4,714
4,051
4,714
4,051
LKR A/Cs		
574,311
1,483,303
533,076
1,433,048
Cash in hand & cheques in hand		
494,857
50,769
494,857
50,769
Total favourable balances		
4,715,636
2,017,627
4,674,401
1,967,372
Total short term deposits & favourable balances		
53,460,358
177,100,049
53,419,123
177,049,794

20.3

Unfavourable balances/overdrafts
Total unfavourable balances		
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement		

21

13,176,679
40,283,679

14,087,457
163,012,592

13,176,679
40,242,444

14,087,457
162,962,337

Stated capital					
Balance as at 1st April		
333,857,588
15,000,020
333,857,588
15,000,020
Issue of ordinary shares		
318,857,568
318,857,568
Balance as at 31st March (66,428,660 Ord. shares)		
333,857,588
333,857,588
333,857,588
333,857,588
During the year 2010/11, the comapnay has sub divided each of its 1,500,002 ordinary shares into 31 ordinary shares, increasing the number of
the ordinary shares to 46,500,062 shares and further issued 19,928,598 ordinary shares through IPO.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividend from time to time and entitled to one vote per individual present at the meeting
of shareholders or one vote per share in case of a poll.						
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
22

2011

Revaluation reserve						
Balance as at 1st April			
134,000,948
134,000,948
134,000,948
134,000,948
Revaluation surplus / (reversals)		
15,704,255
15,704,255
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus		
(2,355,638)
(2,355,638)
134,000,948
147,349,565
134,000,948
Balance as at 31st March		
147,349,565
The revaluation was performed on machinery - heavy duty & stores equipment - heavy duty as at 01.04.2011 by Mr. P. B. Kalugalgedara
chartered Valuation Surveyor using the market value method. During the year 2009/10, the revaluation was performed on freehold land and
buildings by Mr. P. B. Kalugalagedara Chartered Valuation Surveyor using the market value method.

23

Retained earnings
Balance as at 1st April			
Net profit for the year			
IPO Expenses		
Balance as at 31st March		

(18,919,641)
9,263,094
(9,656,547)

(49,089,851)
46,339,238
(16,169,028)
(18,919,641)

(18,904,015)
9,272,237
(9,631,778)

(49,089,851)
46,354,864
(16,169,028)
(18,904,015)

8,319,562
2,738,112
612,820
2,221,589
(517,494)
13,374,589

7,164,612
1,079,594
527,354
(246,697)
(205,301)
8,319,562

2,738,112
612,820
2,221,589
5,572,521

1,079,594
527,354
(246,697)
1,360,251

		Revenue reserve consists only of retained earnings.
24

Employee benefit					

24.1

Provision for employee benefit					
Balance as at 1st April			
8,319,562
7,164,612
Charge for the year			
2,738,112
1,079,594
Interest cost			
612,820
527,354
Deficit/Surpluse change for the year			
2,221,589
(246,697)
(205,301)
Payments made during the year		
(517,494)
8,319,562
Balance as at 31st March		
13,374,589

Amount recognized in the income statement
Charge for the year			
Interest cost			
Deficit/Surpluse change for the year		
			
24.2

2,738,112
612,820
2,221,589
5,572,521

1,079,594
527,354
(246,697)
1,360,251
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The employee benefit plan entitles a retired employee to receive payment equal to 1/2 of final salary multiplied by the number of completed
years of service. However under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability of the employee arises only on the completion of five
year of continued service.
The employee benefit plan valuation is carried out based on gratuity formula method in accordance with SLAS 16.		
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012

2011

Principal assumptions as at balance sheet date
(Expressed as weighted average) as follows:
Discount rate as at 31 st March		
Future salary increases		
25

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

25.1

Non-current liabilities

11%
10.60%

8%
17.50%

11%
10.60%

8%
17.50%

25.1.a Secured term loans
Balance as at 1st April		
104,785,000
122,033,500
104,785,000
122,033,500
Additions		
13,150,000
20,000,000
13,150,000
20,000,000
Effect of movements in foreign exchange		
4,198,758
(3,825,275)
4,198,758
(3,825,275)
122,133,758
			
122,133,758
138,208,225
138,208,225
Repayments during the year		
(76,272,092)
(33,423,225)
(76,272,092)
(33,423,225)
			
45,861,666
104,785,000
45,861,666
104,785,000
Transferred to current liabilities		
(10,280,004)
(75,959,639)
(10,280,004)
(75,959,639)
Secured term loans - Non-current borrowings		
35,581,662
28,825,361
35,581,662
28,825,361
						
Repayable within one year		
10,280,004
75,959,639
10,280,004
75,959,639
Repayable between one & five years 		
35,581,662
26,472,000
35,581,662
26,472,000
Repayable after five years 		
2,353,361
2,353,361
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
25.1.b Finance lease obligations
Balance as at 1st April		
Additions		
Repayments during the year		
Balance as at 31st March		
Transferred to current liabilities		
Finance lease obligations - Non-current borrowings		

4,598,006
18,598,400
(2,382,558)
20,813,848
(3,830,129)
16,983,719

3,549,956
5,000,000
(3,951,949)
4,598,007
(1,021,844)
3,576,163

Finance lease obligations repayable within one year					
Gross liability		
6,026,764
1,797,056
6,026,764
Finance charges		
(2,196,635)
(775,212)
(2,196,635)
Net lease obligation		
3,830,129
1,021,844
3,830,129

1,797,056
(775,212)
1,021,844

4,598,006
18,598,400
(2,382,558)
20,813,848
(3,830,129)
16,983,719

3,549,956
5,000,000
(3,951,949)
4,598,007
(1,021,844)
3,576,163

2011

Finance lease obligations repayable between one and five years
18,999,915
18,999,915
Gross liability		
3,377,319
(3,458,391)
Finance charges		
(822,999)
(3,458,391)
15,541,524
Net lease obligation		
15,541,524
2,554,320
Finance lease obligations repayable after five years					
Gross liability		
1,471,840
1,471,840
Finance charges		
(29,649)
(29,649)
Net lease obligation		
1,442,191
1,442,191
25.1.c Total Non-current borrowings (25.1.a + 25.2.b)		
25.2

52,565,381

32,401,524

52,565,381

3,377,319
(822,999)
2,554,320
32,401,524

Current liabilities					
107,300,247
Bill discounting		
168,490,805
107,300,247
168,490,805
60,790,632
Packing credit loans		
77,095,043
60,790,632
77,095,043
75,959,639
Secured term loans - repayable within one year		
10,280,004
75,959,639
10,280,004
Finance lease obligations - repayable within one year		
3,830,129
1,021,844
3,830,129
1,021,844
			
259,695,981
245,072,362
259,695,981
245,072,362
25.3

Assets pledged as security against borrowings are disclosed in Note no.35.
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012

2011

Deferred Income
Balance as at 1st April		
3,792,476
3,792,476
Additions for the year		
4,334,258
4,334,258
(1,083,565)
(541,782)
Amortized during the year		
(1,083,565)
(541,782)
3,792,476
Balance as at 31st March		
2,708,911
3,792,476
2,708,911
						
Deferred income has been calculated on the profit due to sell and lease back of a tea bagging machine during the year 2010/11.
26

27

Government grants
Balance as at 1st April		
29,402,272
29,402,272
29,402,272
29,402,272
Amortized during the year		
(7,350,568)
(7,350,568)
Balance as at 31st March		
22,051,704
29,402,272
22,051,704
29,402,272
							
The Asian Development Bank offered a grant on 30.09.2009 to contract a tea concentrate plant and the project was completed on 31.03.2011.
28

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred tax assets 					
(1,247,934)
(2,006,188)
Employee benefits		
(2,006,188)
(1,247,934)
						
Deferred tax liability					
Property, Plant and equipment		
2,713,834
1,427,458
2,713,834
1,427,458
Revaluation Surplus		
2,355,638
2,355,638
Net deferred tax liability		
3,063,284
179,524
3,063,284
179,524
						
The movement on the deferred tax					
						
Balance as at 1st April		
179,524
1,061,962
179,524
1,061,962
528,122
Income statement release		
(882,438)
528,122
(882,438)
Transfer from revaluation reserve		
2,355,638
2,355,638
Balance as at 31st March		
3,063,284
179,524
3,063,284
179,524
						
Deferred tax asset of Rs. 13,423,867/- (2010/11-Rs. 12,012,830/-) on carried forward losses of Rs. 89,492,449/- (2010/11-Rs. 80,085,535/-) has
not been recognized due to uncertainty.						
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
Trade payables
Tea creditors		
Packing material creditors		
Flavor creditors		
Other creditors		
			

2011

29

13,176,650
30,402,901
5,532,198
299,141
49,410,890

249,955
24,058,349
3,229,024
258,786
27,796,114

13,176,650
30,402,901
5,532,198
299,141
49,410,890

249,955
24,058,349
3,229,024
258,785
27,796,113

Deposits & advances payables
Debtors advances		
Deposits from debtors		
Other deposits & advances		
			

4,264,833
16,644,449
20,909,282

4,101,979
16,544,449
64,462
20,710,890

4,264,833
16,644,449
20,909,282

4,101,979
16,544,449
64,462
20,710,890

Accrued expenses & other creditors
Salary and related expenses payables		
Economic Service Charges payables		
Custom duty payables		
Freight creditors		
Interest payables		
Other payables		
			

1,288,368
2,696,311
2,293,870
11,143,665
17,422,214

2,817,164
1,996,773
68,288
3,035,219
657,572
11,958,506
20,533,522

1,288,368
2,696,311
2,293,870
11,138,665
17,417,214

2,817,164
1,996,900
68,288
3,035,218
657,572
11,953,506
20,528,648

30

31

32

Related parties disclosures

32.1

Parent and ultimate controlling party
Ultimate controlling party of the Comapany is HVA Lanka Exports (Pvt) Ltd.

32.2

Transactions with key management personnel.
Key management personnel include all the members of the Board of Directors of the company having authority and responsibilities for
planning , directing and controlling the activities of the Company.					
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees			Consolidated		 Company
		
2011
2012
2012
32.2.1 Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation comprised,
Short- term employee benefits including salaries		
Post employment benefits		
Other long-term benefits		
Termination benefits		
Share based payments		
Total		

20,961,016
20,961,016

10,208,106
10,208,106

20,961,016
20,961,016

2011

10,208,106
10,208,106

32.2.2 Key management personnel and director transactions
a.
Details of the Directors & their spouses’ shareholding are given in the Annual Report of the Company on page 31.
There were no other transactions with key management personnel other than those disclosed below.
Director
Mr. A.R.H.Fernando
		
Loan obtained from the Director (interest free)				
			 - Transaction value		
2,500,000
2,500,000
			 - Outstanding value		
								
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
		
Loan obtained from the Director (Interest rate is 8% p.a)
			 - Transaction value
- Interest
427,763
530,398
427,763
530,398
			 - Outstanding value
- Loan
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
				
- Interest
2,539,134
2,111,371
2,539,134
2,111,371
32.3

Transactions with group companies

32.3.1 Allocation of common expenses
Common expenses of HVA Lanka Exports (Pvt) Ltd and HVA Foods PLC, are allocated among both companies on the following basis;
Allocation method

Common expenses item

Labour hours

Direct labour & employee related expenses, packing charges, medical consultation, vehicle (factory overhead) &
generator hiring charges and fuel charges (admin)

Volume basis

Tea collection charges, factory & machinery maintenance, depreciation, security charges, fuel charges (factory
overhead), electricity (factory overhead), depreciation (admin), water charges, CCTV charges and insurance (factory)

Turnover basis

Other consumption, vehicle maintenance (admin), insurance, printing & stationery, office & off. Equipment
maintenance, software maintenance, telephone & mobile charges, R & D expenses, business promotion expenses,
foreign travels, courier charges, security (admin), land & building maintenance, and fuel charges (admin)
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32.3.2 Other transactions with group companies
For the amounts outstanding as at 31.03.2012 refer to Note 16 to the Financial Statements (Amounts due from/due to related parties).
All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees

Consolidated
2012

a.

Company
Directors

Relationship
Nature of transaction

b. Company
Directors

Relationship
Nature of transaction
c.

Company
Directors

Relationship
Nature of transaction

HVA Lanka Exports (Pvt) Ltd.
Mr. A. R. H. Fernando
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Mr. W. I. H. J. Fernando
Parent company
Sale of goods
Purchases of goods
Re-imbursement of expenses & other transactions
Receipts for expenses & other transactions
Direct payments received
Interest on current account balance @ 6.5% p.a.
HVA Farms (Pvt) Ltd.
Mr. A. R. H. Fernando
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Mr. J. Raddaldoga
Common Directors
Re-imbursement of expenses
Lake Drive Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.
Mr. A. R. H. Fernando
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Mr. W. I. H. J. Fernando
Common Directors
Transport charges
Interest expenses
Acquisition of HVA Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Acquisition of Land / Ice Tea Project

d. Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Adpack Productions (Pvt) Ltd
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
IPO events & prospectus printing chrages

e.

Traid Advertising (Pvt) Ltd.
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
IPO expenses
Sales of tea
Advertisement cost

Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

2011

Company
2012

`

2011

15,900,994
20,246,051
95,819,671
28,981,369
32,550,000
11,216,327

12,279,849
10,202,332
106,699,888
40,876,083
-

15,900,994
20,246,051
95,819,671
28,981,369
32,550,000
11,216,327

12,279,849
10,202,332
106,699,888
40,876,083
-

-

519,516

-

519,516

139,126
-

699,979
297,815
45,000,000
6,000,000

139,126
-

699,979
297,815
45,000,000
6,000,000

-

816,700

-

816,700

87,136
284,710

6,081,078
41,362
-

87,136
284,710

6,081,078
41,362
-
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees

Consolidated
2012

f.

Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Asia Commerce Ltd. / Divasa Finance Ltd.
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando (Resigned w.e.f. 09.02.2012)
Common Directors
Fixed deposts
Sales of tea
Interest income

Company

2011

2012

`

2011

10,026
1,084,000

20,000,000
6,486
-

10,026
1,084,000

20,000,000
6,486
-

29,500

29,431

29,500

29,431

1,284,671

-

1,284,671

-

g. Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Printage (Pvt) Ltd
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
Sales of tea

h.

Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Emagewise (Pvt) Ltd
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
Annual Report Printing charges & other related
cost

Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Sarva Integrated (Pvt) Ltd
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
Sales of tea

13,050

-

13,050

-

Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Imageline (Pvt) Ltd
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
Sales of tea

17,700

-

17,700

-

Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Citrus Leisure Plc
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
Sales of tea

139,649

-

139,649

-

Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Citrus Vacations Ltd.
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
Professional service

314,400

-

314,400

-

15,520

-

15,520

-

i.

j.

k.

l.

m. Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Derena Macro Entertainment (Pvt) Ltd.
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Common Directors
Sales of tea
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All amounts in Sri Lanka Rupees

Consolidated
2012

n.

Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

o. Company
Directors
Relationship
Nature of transaction

Richard Pieries Distributions Ltd.
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke
Common Directors
Sales of tea
Gondola rent & other purchases
P. R. Secretarial Services (Pvt) Ltd.
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke
Common Directors
Secretarial fees & professional charges

2011

Company
2012

`

2011

1,119,545
1,165,714

1,272,378
320,200

1,119,545
1,165,714

1,272,378
320,200

410,603

56,037

410,603

56,037

32.4

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of the business. Outstanding current account balances at year end are
unsecured, interest free (except parent company) and settlement occures in cash. Interest bearing borrowings are pre-determined interest
rates and terms.

33

Events after the balance sheet date					
No events identified since the balance sheet date, which may require a disclosure or an adjustment in the financial statements.

34

Commitment & contingencies
The company has contingent liabilities on behalf of the its perent company, as follows;
Company name
HVA Lanka Exports (Pvt) Ltd

Lending institution
Security given by the Company
Security (Rs.)
Lankaputhra Development Primary mortgage-Land,building and
130 Mn (balance outstanding as at
Bank
machinery at 39 A, Linton Road, Kandana 31.03.12 is Rs. 52.6 Mn.)
HVA Lanka Exports (Pvt) Ltd Hongkong & Shanghai
Issuance of guarantee
0.5 Mn
Banking Corporation Ltd
					
35

Assets pledged as securities
The following assets of the company have been pledged as securities for liabilities as at the balance sheet date.
Lending institution
Bank of Ceylon
Peoples Bank
Seylan Bank Plc
Hongkong & Shanghai
Banking Corporation Ltd
DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC

36

Security
Nature of facility
Fixed deposits, Bill of exchange, Packing material Term loan, Packing credit loans,
stock & machinery
Export bills,O/D
Stocks and debtors
Packing credit loans, Export bills,
Letter of credit & O/D
Fixed deposits, Bill of exchange, Packing material Term Loan, Packing credit loans,
stock, machinery, vehicles & Land & building
Export bills,O/D & Leasing
Stocks and packing materials
Packing credit loans & Export bills
Stocks and debtors

Export bills

Amount of Facility Rs.
172.15 Mn
38.25 Mn
251.38 Mn
63.75 Mn
76.5 Mn

Comparative Information					
No comparative information has been reclassified during the year.
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Investor Information
1.

Stock exchange listing
The Issued ordinary shares of the company are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.

2.

Ordinary shareholders

		

To

No of Holders

No of Shares

%

		
1		
1,000
		
1,001		 10,000
		
10,001		 100,000
		
100,001		1,000,000
		
Over 1,000,000			
				
Total

2,769
1,665
384
27
3
4,848

1,344,363
6,143,716
10,587,567
6,138,787
42,214,227
66,428,660

2.02
9.25
15.93
9.25
63.55
100.00

3.

From		

Analysis of shareholders				
Local Individuals				

4,612

18,042,810

27.16

Local Institutions				

201

47,665,481

71.75

Foreign Individuals				

35

720,369

1.09

4,848

66,428,660

100.00

				

Total

The public holding percentage was 38.89% as at 31st March 2012.
4.

Market value

		
Highest
Lowest
Closing

2012.03.31
Rs.

2011.03.31
Rs.

29.00
19.50
19.90

82.50
12.00
15.00
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Major Shareholders and percentage

			
		

Name

2012

2011

No. of shares

%

No. of shares

%

1

HVA Lanka Exports (Private) Limited

28,988,471

43.639

46,500,031

70.000

2

Seylan Bank PLC/HVA Lanka Exports (Private) Limited

11,600,000

17.462

-

-

3

Seylan Bank PLC/M/S Divasa Equity (Pvt) Ltd

1,625,756

2.447

-

-

4

Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC/Lankem Ceylon PLC

959,500

1.444

-

-

5

Seylan Bank PLC/W D. N. H. Perera

551,600

0.830

-

-

6

Mr. T. G. Thoradeniya

435,100

0.655

-

-

7

Esna Holdings (Pvt) Ltd

303,300

0.457

-

-

8

Mr. H. W. M. Woodward

302,100

0.455

150,000

0.226

9

Mr. M. Mahibalan

300,000

0.452

-

-

10

Mr. M. Muralidaran

236,400

0.356

-

-

11

Administrators and Secretaries (Private) Limited

210,000

0.316

-

-

12

Mr. S. H. Amarasekera

208,700

0.314

-

-

13

Mrs. K. V. W. S. Maddumage

200,000

0.301

-

-

14

Mr. T. L. M. Imtiaz

199,900

0.301

-

-

15

Mrs. S. G. De Silva

196,500

0.296

-

-

16

Gnanam Imports (Pvt) Ltd

194,075

0.292

-

-

17

Mrs. F. S. Sabry

190,000

0.286

-

-

18

Carlines Holdings (Private) Limited

170,010

0.256

-

-

19

Mr. A. H. M. Riyaz

165,000

0.248

-

-

20

Mr. S. N. C. W. M B. C. Kandegedara

155,302

0.234

-

-

			

47,191,714

71.041

46,650,031

70.226

		Others

19,236,946

28.959

19,778,629

29.774

		Total

66,428,660

100.000

66,428,660

100.000
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Five Year Summary
2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

Trading Results (Rs)					
Turnover
741,654,063
561,647,269
488,206,319
402,379,235
386,865,694
Operating Expenses
(756,717,929)
(555,768,313)
(438,764,311)
(356,843,600)
(395,512,135)
Other Operating Income
47,281,751
49,644,332
28,832,656
24,957,801
11,572,300
Profit before finance charges
32,217,885
55,523,288
78,274,664
70,493,436
2,925,859
(41,056,043)
(31,644,287)
(29,925,028)
(58,385,691)
(31,287,044)
Finance Cost
Finance income
21,630,049
23,297,515
7,238,561
5,928,618
11,902,775
Profit before Income Tax
12,791,891
47,176,516
55,588,197
18,036,363
(16,458,410)
Income Tax on Profits
(3,519,654)
(821,653)
(1,313,429)
(3,218,398)
(5,036)
Profit after Income Tax
9,272,237
46,354,863
54,274,768
14,817,965
(16,463,446)
					
Shareholders Funds (Rs)					
Stated Capital
333,857,588
333,857,588
15,000,020
15,000,020
15,000,020
Reserves
137,717,785
115,096,932
84,911,097
(7,227,765)
(22,045,730)
Net Assets
471,575,373
448,954,520
99,911,117
7,772,255
(7,045,710)
					
Assets (Rs)					
Property , Plant & Equipment
327,148,135
264,539,307
236,285,570
158,110,838
160,852,603
Intangible Assets
243,918
102,168
Investment in subsidiary
45,000,000
45,000,000
Current Assets
566,081,449
553,561,198
281,371,485
177,009,676
177,445,251
					
Liabilities (Rs)					
Non-current Liabilities
93,763,869
74,095,358
145,945,728
136,297,102
55,516,826
Current Liabilities
373,134,262
340,152,795
271,800,210
191,051,157
289,826,738
471,575,373
448,954,520
99,911,117
7,772,255
(7,045,710)
Net Assets (Rs)
					
Ratios & Other Information					
Current Ratio
1.52
1.63
1.04
0.93
0.61
1.28
1.44
0.86
0.69
0.45
Quick Asset Ratio
Debt equity Ratio (%)
47
45
103
79
98
1.66
6.65
3.45
1.34
0.15
Interest Cover (No. of times)
1.97
Return on Equity (%)
10.33
54.32
190.65
233.67
Return on Total Assets (%)
0.99
5.37
10.48
4.42
(4.87)
Net Asset Value per share
7.10
6.76
1.50
0.12
(0.11)
Earning Per Share (Rs)
0.14
0.95
0.82
0.22
(0.25)
32.05
15.04
21.33
4.01
52.40
Revenue Growth (%)
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Corporate Information
Name of company
HVA Foods PLC
Legal form
Public Limited Liability Company
Incorporated in Sri Lanka in 1997
Registered office of the company
39 A, Linton Road,
Kandana
Company registration No.
PB/PV 1765 PQ
Stock Exchange Listing
The Ordinary Shares are listed on Colombo Stock Exchange
Directors
Mr. A. R. H. Fernando - Chairman
Mr. W. I. H. J. Fernando
Mr. J. Raddalgoda
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando
Mr. N. C. Vitarana
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke
Audit committee
Mr. N. C. Vitarana - Chairman
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke
Remuneration committee
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke - Chairman
Mr. N. C. Vitarana
Secretaries
P.R. Secretarial Services (Pvt) Ltd.
59, Gregory’s Road,
Colombo 07

Lawyers
Paul Rathnayake Associates
59, Gregory’s Road,
Colombo 07
Murugesu & Neelakandan
Attornys At Law
2, Deal Place,
Colombo 03
Auditors
KPMG
32 A, Sir Mohomed Macan Marker Mawatha,
P. O. Box - 186, Colombo 03.
Internal Auditors
Ernst & Young Advisory Services (Pvt) Ltd
201, De Saram Place,
P.O.Box 101, Colombo 10.
Bankers
DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC
Seylan Bank PLC
Bank of Ceylon
Hatton National Bank PLC
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd
Investor relations
HVA Foods PLC
39 A, Linton Road,
Kandana
Tel : 011 223 8714
Fax : 011 483 2802
Web : www.Heladiv.com
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Notice of Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2nd Annual General Meeting of HVA
For the year ended 31st December		
FOODS PLC will be held on 17th September 2012 at 9.00 a.m. at Central
Note
Bank Auditorium, No. 58, Sri Jayawardenapura Mawatha, Rajagiriya.
AGENDA
1.

To read the notice convening the meeting.

2.

To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2012 and the
Report of the Auditors thereon.

3.

To re-elect Mr. J H P Ratnayeke who retires by rotation in terms
of Article 88 (i) of the Articles of Association of the Company as a
Director of the Company.

4.

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following as an ordinary
resolution:
“IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT the age limit referred to in Section
210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to Mr. N C
Vitarana who is presently 81 (eighty one) years of age and that he be
re-appointed as a Director of the Company for a further period of
one year or until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
whichever occurs first”.

5.

Subject to Shareholder approval referred to in 4 above, Mr. N C
Vitarana be re-appointed in terms of Article 88 (ii) of the Articles of
Association of the Company as a Director of the Company.

6.

To re-appoint Messrs. KPMG, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of
the Company for the ensuing year and to authorize the Directors to
determine their remuneration.

7.

To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations.

8.

To transact any other business of which due notice has been given.

By order of the Board of Directors of
HVA Foods PLC

P. R. Secretarial Services (Pvt) Ltd.
Secretaries
Colombo
10th August 2012

Note:
•

2012
2011
2012
2011
A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, is entitled
‘000 a Proxy Rs.
‘000 and vote
Rs.instead
‘000 of him/her,
Rs. ‘000
to attend
a Form
toRs.
appoint
of Proxy is enclosed for this purpose.

•

A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

•

A member wishing to vote by proxy at the meeting may use the
Proxy Form enclosed.

•

The completed Form of Proxy must be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company situated at 39 A, Linton Road,
Kandana not later than forty eight (48) hours before the time fixed
for holding of the meeting.

•

Any member or Proxy holder attending the meeting is kindly
requested to bring this report.

•

For security reasons, Members/Proxy holders are kindly advised
to bring along with them their National Identity Card or a similar
form of acceptable identity when attending the meeting.
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Form of Proxy
I/We……………….………………………………………………………...……… (NIC No. …...………..…) of …...........................................................................
For the year ended 31st December		
2012
2011
2012
2011
...............................................………..………………………………………………………………………………………….......... being a Member/Members of
Note
Rs. ‘000
Rs. ‘000
Rs. ‘000
Rs. ‘000
the above named Company, hereby appoint: ………………….………………………………………………… (NIC No. ………………….…………….) of ……
.....…………………..........................................…………….………………… failing him/her,
Mr. A. R. H. Fernando 								
or failing him,
Mrs. V. S. A. Fernando 								
or failing her
Mr. J. Raddalgoda 								or failing him
Mr. W. I. H. J. Fernando 								
or failing him
Mr. N. C. Vitarana 								or failing him
Mr. J. H. P. Ratnayeke 								
or failing him
as my/our Proxy to represent me/us and to speak and to vote on my/our behalf at the 2nd Annual General Meeting of the Company which is to be
held on the 17th of September 2012 at 9.00 a.m. at Central Bank Auditorium, No. 58, Sri Jayawardenapura Mawatha, Rajagiriya, and at every poll
which may be taken in consequence of the aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof.
FOR
I/ WE INDICATE MY/OUR VOTE ON THE RESOLUTIONS AS FOLLOWS:
1) To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st March 2012 and the Report of the Auditors thereon
2)

To re-elect Mr. J H P Ratnayeke who retires by rotation in terms of Article 88 (i) of the Articles of
Association of the Company as a Director of the Company.

3)

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following as an ordinary resolution:
“IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT the age limit referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of
2007 shall not apply to Mr. N C Vitarana who is presently 81 (eighty one) years of age and that he be reappointed as a Director of the Company for a further period of one year or until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting whichever occurs first¨.

4)

Subject to Shareholder approval referred to in 4 above, Mr. N C Vitarana be re-appointed in terms of
Article 88 (ii) of the Articles of Association of the Company as a Director of the Company.

5)

To authorize the Directors to determine and make donations.

6)

To re-appoint Messrs. KPMG, Chartered Accountants, as Auditor of the Company for the ensuing year
and to authorize the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Signed this……………………………………day of……………....……………………………………………..2012.
………………………………………
Signature of Shareholder
Note:

(i)
(ii)
(ii)
(iii)

……………………………………
National Identity Card No.

Please delete the inappropriate words
A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Instructions for completion of Proxy are noted below
Please mark ‘X’ in appropriate cages, to indicate your instructions as to voting.

AGAINST
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Form of

Proxy

INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF PROXY
1.

To be valid, this Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, No. 39A, Linton Road, Kandana not later than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding of the meeting.

2.

In perfecting the Form of Proxy please ensure that all details are legible.

3.

If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman (or failing him, one of the
Directors) as your Proxy, please insert the relevant details at (1) overleaf and initial against
this entry.

4.

Please indicate with an ‘X’ in the space provided how your Proxy is to vote on each
resolution. If no indication is given, the Proxy in his discretion will vote, as he thinks fit. If
you do not wish your Proxy to vote as he thinks fit on any other resolution brought before
the meeting, please mark the box provided appropriately and initial.

5.

In the case of a Company/Corporation, the Proxy must be under its Common Seal, which
should be affixed and attested in the manner prescribed by its Articles of Association/Act
of Incorporation.

6.

In the case of a Proxy signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of Attorney should
accompany the completed form of proxy for registration, if such Power of Attorney has not
already been registered with the Company.
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